
    

   
 

CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES (CYF) BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SYSTEM OF CARE COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA  

September 13, 2021 – 9:00-10:30 AM 
Zoom link for meeting registration: https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwtcOmspjwrGtPAGjdKzvGIkSgB4pjOpe7e 

(Sent via Outlook/Calendar meeting invitation) 
I. Welcome (Suzette Southfox)      5 minutes 

 
II. Review of Meeting Summary (Jaime Tate-Symons)  5 minutes 

• August 9, 2021 Meeting Summary-Handout - Pages 4-8 
• No Action Items from August 9, 2021 
 

III. Business Items (Yael Koenig)            15 minutes 
Board Letters (BL) / Board Actions 

• August 17, 2021-BL-Item 01: Authorize Competitive Solicitation For Legal Representation For Detained Immigrant Facing Removal Proceedings and Receive Report-
Handout - Pages 9-11 

• August 17, 2021-BL-Item 03: Ratify Membership of the Subcommittee of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council Regarding Juvenile Justice Realignment and 
Attachment - Handout - Pages 12-14 

• August 17, 2021-BL-Item 05: District Attorney-Dedicating Criminal Fines to Services for K-12 Youth-Handout - Pages 15-16 
• August 17, 2021-BL-Item 08: Reimagine Vibrant Communities Through Arts & Culture - Handout - Pages 17-19 
• August 17, 2021-BL-Item 09: Housing Preservation and Anti-Displacement (HPAD) Initiative - Handout - Pages 20-22 
• August 17, 2021-BL-Item 15: Enhancing Enforcement of Illegal Marijuana Dispensaries and Simplifying the Receivership Process - Handout - Pages 23-25 
• August 31, 2021-BL-Item 05: Receive Report on Accomplishments of the $50 Million Innovative Housing Trust Fund and Attachment - Handout - Pages 26-27 
• August 31, 2021-BL-Item 06: Advancing Immediate and Long-Term Housing Priorities Through the Innovative Housing Trust Fund - Handout - Pages 28-30 
• August 31, 2021-BL-Item 07: Transformative Housing Solutions that Advance Equity, Sustainability, and Affordability for All - Handout - Pages 31-40 
• August 31, 2021-BL-Item 08: Authorize Competitive Solicitation for An Administrator for Homeless Housing and Support to Serve People with High Needs 

Experiencing Homelessness in San Diego County - Handout - Pages 41-42 
• August 31, 2021-BL-Item 19: Framework for Our Future: Declaring Health Misinformation a Public Health Crisis - Handout - Pages 43-45 
 
Link to the Clerk of Board of Supervisors (BOS) Meeting Agendas, Board Letters and Access to the BOS meetings: 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/cob/bosa/index.html 

 

Information 
• Logistic Improvement – Fiscal Year 2021-22 CYF Council Meeting Invites through calendars (Google/Outlook/Yahoo) 

o Invite requires meeting registration 
o Meeting Zoom link and meeting materials embedded in each meeting e-mail invitation 
o Continue with email reminders 
o Separate meeting/calendar invites for Combined Council Meetings 
o To be added or removed from the CYF Council Distribution List, please contact Grisel Ortega at Grisel.Ortega@sdcounty.ca.gov  

• Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) to Youth effective July 1, 2021. More information at: www.soapmat.com – Handout - Page 46 
• September 2021 BHS Director’s Report to the Behavioral Health Advisory Board (BHAB) - Includes CYF Highlights-Handout - Pages 47-58 
• Brain XP’s Back to School Teen Anxiety Video - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ygwyXEmAT7w  
• Live Well San Diego Youth Sector: Social Anxiety Instagram – For Youth By Youth - Handout - Pages 59-71 
• National Suicide Prevention Week – September 5 through 11, 2021 - Suicide Prevention Council - Community Health Improvement Partners (CHIP) (sdchip.org) 

 
 

IV. Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Update (Danyte Mockus-Valenzuela)     5 minutes 
 

V. Hot Topic: Pandemic Impact Report and School Focus (Yael Koenig)                    55 minutes 
• CYF Pandemic Impact Report 2019-20 Presentation (Emily Velazquez Trask) - Handout - Pages 72-100 

Link: https://medschool.ucsd.edu/som/psychiatry/research/CASRC/resources/SOCE/Documents/CYFBHS%20SOC%20Report%202019-20_FINALv2_with%20appendices.pdf 
• Aperture Education - 2021 Back to School Guide - Strategies for A Successful 2021-2022 School Year Link: 2021 Back-to-School Guide.pdf (hubspotusercontent30.net) 

Handout - Pages 101-121 
• Polling Questions  

 
Panel Discussion 

Facilitator – Aisha Pope-Program Director-Foster Family Agency Stabilization Treatment (FFAST)-San Diego Center for Children (SDCC) 
Setting the Stage: Heather Nemour - Program Specialist Student Support Services: Student Wellness & School Culture-San Diego County Office of Education 
• Jaime Tate-Symons - Executive Director, North Inland Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA)-San Diego County Office of Education 
• Elizabeth Gianulis - Multi Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) Director for Chula Vista Elementary School District 
• Michelle Santiago - Social Worker at San Marcos Unified School District 
• Lisa Read - School Social Worker at Steele Canyon High School (Charter)-Grossmont Union High School District 
• Stephanie Hsu - School Counselor at Montgomery High School-Sweetwater Unified High School District 
• Caitlynn Hauw - High School Student in Poway  
• Iris Hueso - SchooLink provider from Community Research Foundation (CRF)-Nueva Vista Family Services   
• Lesley A. Johnson-SchooLink provider-San Diego Unified School District-Marcy Day School Services 

 

What is the community anxious about as we move towards school re-entry? 
For those who have had students on campus, what kinds of issues are youth and families raising? 

Which students are struggling with re-entry and/or which students are you most concerned about? 
What's needed from the system to support students, families, and the workforce through this process? 

 

                
VI. Announcements (Suzette Southfox)                                                               5 minutes 

• Live Well San Diego-Youth Sector: Youth Advisor Job Opportunity Link: http://www.bit.ly/3rYU3pG - Handout - Page 122 
• Recovery Happens, Saturday, September 18, 2021 from 10:00-11:30 AM (Free virtual event) – Handout - Page 123 
• 12th Annual Early Childhood Mental Health Conference - We Can’t Wait! September 23-25, 2021. Link: https://www.earlychildhoodmentalhealth-sandiego.com/ 
• Combined Councils Meeting, October 11, 2021 – Note that meeting is from 10:00 to 11:30 AM via Zoom - Flier - Page 124 
• Healthy San Diego-California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) Kick Off Event is scheduled for October 22, 2021, from 1:00 to 3:30 PM 

Link for more CalAIM information: https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/provgovpart/Pages/CalAIM.aspx - Handout-Page 125 
• Virtual Live Well Advance Conference is scheduled for November 17-18, 2021- Link: https://www.livewellsd.org/content/livewell/home/news-events/advance.html 

Handout - Page 126 
Next Executive Committee Conference Call: 
Date: September 23, 2021 
Time: 11:00 - 11:30 AM 

Next Council Meeting: Combined Councils Meeting 
Date: Monday, October 11, 2021 
Time: 10:00 - 11:30 AM 

Sub-Committees/Sectors/Workgroups Meetings Information is located at the end of the meeting summary. For Council materials go to: 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/CYFBHSOCCouncil.html 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwtcOmspjwrGtPAGjdKzvGIkSgB4pjOpe7e
mailto:Grisel.Ortega@sdcounty.ca.gov
http://www.soapmat.com/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ygwyXEmAT7w
https://www.sdchip.org/initiatives/suicide-prevention-council/
https://medschool.ucsd.edu/som/psychiatry/research/CASRC/resources/SOCE/Documents/CYFBHS%20SOC%20Report%202019-20_FINALv2_with%20appendices.pdf
https://f.hubspotusercontent30.net/hubfs/2613587/Guides%20-%20BTSG,%20SSG/2021%20BTSG/2021%20Back-to-School%20Guide.pdf?__hstc=95304899.83bf1f888ab8c380a959a6aba9422785.1622051842178.1630327070522.1630333557248.259&__hssc=95304899.1.1630333557248&__hsfp=2168541956&utm_medium=email&_hsmi=154123694&_hsenc=p2ANqtz-8-ngl-CRNHREIgQub6A04I0YNDKKMLFyocnVNAimqEy0gy9FrG_1eTzeK35CqMaqN7LK5nrxUKHWVNAu4xMczV5ENl2-KsHSWhu018-zo6rKoK-mE&utm_content=154122152&utm_source=hs_email
http://www.bit.ly/3rYU3pG%20-%20Handout%20-%20Page
https://www.earlychildhoodmentalhealth-sandiego.com/
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/provgovpart/Pages/CalAIM.aspx
https://www.livewellsd.org/content/livewell/home/news-events/advance.html
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/CYFBHSOCCouncil.html


May 1, 2018 
S:\BHS\CYF\ADD Meetings\CYFBHSOC Council\CYFBHSOCC Principles Mtg\Current SOC Principles May 14, 2018\May 14-2018 

 

County of San Diego  
Children, Youth and Families Behavioral Health 

 System of Care Council 
Vision, Mission, and Principles 

Council Vision: 
Wellness for children, youth and families throughout their lifespan. 

Council Mission: 
Advance systems and services to ensure that children and youth are healthy, safe, 
lawful, successful in school and in their transition to adulthood, while living in nurturing 
homes with families. 

Council Principles: 

1. Collaboration of four sectors: Coordination and shared responsibility between
child/youth/family, public agencies, private organizations and education.

2. Integrated: Services and supports are coordinated, comprehensive, accessible, and
efficient. 

3. Child, Youth, and Family Driven: Child, youth, and family voice, choice, and lived
experience are sought, valued and prioritized in service delivery, program design and policy
development.

4. Individualized: Services and supports are customized to fit the unique strengths and
needs of children, youth and families.

5. Strength-based: Services and supports identify and utilize knowledge, skills, and assets of
children, youth, families and their community.

6. Community-based: Services are accessible to children, youth and families and strengthen
their connections to natural supports and local resources.

7. Outcome driven: Outcomes are measured and evaluated to monitor progress and to
improve services and satisfaction.

8. Culturally Competent: Services and supports respect diverse beliefs, identities, cultures,
preference, and represent linguistic diversity of those served.

9. Trauma Informed: Services and supports recognize the impact of trauma and chronic
stress, respond with compassion, and commit to the prevention of re-traumatization and
the promotion of self-care, resiliency, and safety.

10. Persistence: Goals are achieved through action, coordination and perseverance
regardless of challenges and barriers.

2



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES

CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES 
FRAMEWORK

 

VISION
 

PRIORITIES

Children and youth are healthy, safe, lawful, successful in school and in
 their transition to adulthood, while living in nurturing homes with families.

Strengthen
partnerships with
children/youth’s

circle of influence to
create a supportive

environment.

HEALTH FACTORS
Live Well San Diego-Areas of Influence

Supportive Families
Nurturing Communities
Connection to Natural Supports
Positive Social Interactions

 Social

Access to Parks, Playgrounds and
Recreation Centers
Usable Transportation
Safe Neighborhoods & Schools
Affordable Stable Housing
Access to Extracurricular Activities

Economic & Nutrition Security
Timely Access to Healthcare
Inclusive of Behavioral Health
Services
Employment Readiness

Daily Physical Activity
Limited & Supervised Screen
Time
Affordable Healthy Food
Zero Sugary Beverages,
Drink More Water
No Substance Use
No Tobacco Use
Up to Date Immunizations
Connection to a Health Home

Quality Education
Quality Preschool For All
Good School Attendance
School Success
No Suspensions or Expulsions
Obtain a High School Diploma
Access to Higher Education &
Vocational Programs

        

Standard
 of Living

Version 3/5/2021

Ensure a full continuum
of care through family-

centered and youth-
informed services that
are compassionate and
sensitive to the unique

developmental needs of
children and youth.

Provide services that
empower children and

youth to build a healthy
sense of self and have

confidence to make
sound decisions so they

thrive in an  ever-
changing world.

Knowledge

Health

Community

Collaborative, Integrated, Child, Youth & Family Driven, Individualized,
Strength-based, Community-based, Outcome & Data Driven, Culturally

Competent, Trauma Informed, Persistence

PRINCIPLES
 

3



   

1 | P a g e  
 

CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES (CYF)  
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SYSTEM OF CARE COUNCIL 

MEETING SUMMARY 
August 9, 2021 | 9:00-10:30 AM 

Virtual Meeting  
 

ITEM SUMMARY AND ACTION ITEMS 
I. Welcome (Suzette Southfox & Yael Koenig) 
• Welcome Jaime Tate-Symons as the new Council co-chair, representing the Education 

Sector 
• Introducing New Council representatives 
• Thank you to outgoing Council co-chair Minola Clark Manson and representatives, and  

for those who continue in their representation 
  

 

• Yael Koenig introduced co-chair Suzette 
Southfox representing the Family & Youth 
Sector, as the alternate to Valerie Hebert. 

• Welcoming Jaime Tate-Symons, as the new 
co-chair. 

• Recognizing all incoming and outgoing 
council members and alternates, as well as 
all participants who contribute to the 
collective impact.  

• Thanking Minola Clark Manson for her co-
facilitation of the Council over the past two 
years. 
 

II. Review of Meeting Summary (Suzette Southfox) 
• June 14, 2021 Meeting Summary-Handouts-Pages 4-8 
• Action Items from June 14, 2021 (Yael Koenig)-See meeting summary for action items-

Page 6 
 

• Suzette Southfox requested revisions and 
input to grisel.ortega@sdcounty.ca.gov by 
COB August 9, 2021. 

• Yael Koenig reviewed action items. 

III. Business Items (Yael Koenig) 
Board Letters 

• June 29, 2021-Board Letter (BL)-Item 09: Enhancing Enforcement of Illegal Marijuana 
Dispensaries and Simplifying the Receivership Process-Handout-Pages 9-11 

• June 29, 2021-BL-Item 12: Amplifying Systems of Support for Youth Career Readiness 
and Employment and attachment (Framework proposal)-Handouts-Pages 12-15 

• July 13, 2021-BL-Item 06: Authorization to Extend the Contract to Operate San Pasqual 
Academy-Handout-Pages 16-18 

• July 13, 2021-BL-Item 07: Approval of Actions Related to the Spending Plan for the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Program Funds Homeless Solutions Component, 
Direct Stimulus Payments Component, and Legal Services Component-Handout-Pages 
19-23 

• July 13, 2021-BL-Item 11: Authorize Competitive Solicitations, Single Source 
Procurements, and Amendment to Extend Existing Behavioral Health Services Contract 
and Attachment A-Handout-Pages 24-32  

• July 13, 2021-BL-Item 14: Framework for the Future: Improving the County’s Wellness 
Care Delivery System to address Health Disparities Exacerbated by the COVID-19 
Pandemic-Handout-Pages 33-36 

• July 13, 2021 -BL-Item 16: Supporting the San Diego Regional Policy and Innovation 
Center-Handout-Pages 37-38 

• July 13, 2021-BL-Item 20: Advancing Inclusion of LGBTQ+ Community in San Diego 
County-Handout-Pages 39-41 

• Link to the Clerk of Board of Supervisors (BOS) Meeting Agendas, Board Letters and 
Access to the BOS meetings: https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/cob/bosa/index.html 
 

 
Information 
• Annual CYF Council Orientation occurred on July 12, 2021, with 59 participants  
• Using a 1 to 5 scale (with 1 being low); the overall average rating for the orientation was 

a 4.4 (based on 36 responses) 
• 81 % of respondents indicated preference for a virtual format for the Council meeting 

(based on 36 responses) 
• August 2021 BHS Director’s Report to the Behavioral Health Advisory Board (BHAB)-

Handout-Pages 42-44 

• Yael Koenig reviewed business and 
information items. 

4

mailto:grisel.ortega@sdcounty.ca.gov
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/cob/bosa/index.html


   

2 | P a g e  
 

ITEM SUMMARY AND ACTION ITEMS 
• Fentanyl Warning Posters: https://www.sandiegorxabusetaskforce.org/fentanyl-warning-

posters 
• Change Agents Developing Recovery Excellence (CADRE) Meeting Dates for Fiscal 

Year 2021-22-Handout-Page 45 
• Polling Question #1 

  
Follow-Up 
1. Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Update was released for 
30-day public review/comments and includes the BHS Fiscal Year 2020-21 Annual 
Community Engagement Report (See item IV of the agenda) 

2. Finalized ARPA recommendation document and delivered to BHS Director on June 18, 
2021–Handout-Pages 46-55 

IV. Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Update (Dr. Danyte Mockus-Valenzuela) 
• MHSA Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Update 30-day public review and comment period 

from August 3, 2021 to September 2, 2021. Link: 
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services
_act/mhsa.html  
 

• Dr. Danyte Mockus-Valenzuela reviewed the 
MHSA Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Update 
which include the BHS community 
engagement report.  

• Reviewed report posting location and 
process to provide feedback during the 30-
day public comment period, inclusive of 
email or speaking at the Board of 
Supervisor’s meeting. 

• Link to access and download the MHSA 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Update: 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/da
m/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/documents/NOC/
MHSA/MHSA%20FY%202021-
22%20Annual%20Update.pdf. 

• Presentation can be made available to the 
Council or accessed through other open 
meetings such as the Behavioral Health 
Advisory Board on September 2, 2021, or 
Board of Supervisors Meeting on October 5, 
2021 (tentative). 

Strategic Planning (Yael Koenig) 
• Fiscal Year 2020-21 Accomplishment and Fiscal 2021-22 Year Goals-Handouts-Pages  
     56-86 
• Sector and Sub-committee Panel Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

o How does the Pandemic impact the work your sector/subcommittee is focused on? 
o How is Racial Equity being infused in the work that your sector/subcommittee is 

focused on?   
o How does your sector/subcommittee interface with Harm Reduction to create a 

positive impact for students and families?  
(Harm Reduction Board Letter information from June 8, 2021, was reshared with all 
participants prior to the meeting) 

o Open Dialogue 

• Aisha Pope facilitated a panel discussion 
about pandemic impact, racial equity and 
harm reduction. 

• The following sector and sub-committee 
representatives provided input on key 
themes and considerations:  
o Mark Bartlett 
o George Scolari 
o Eileen Quinn-O’Malley 
o Marisa Varond 
o Minola Clark Manson 
o Rose Woods 
o Suzette Southfox 
o Ginger Bial 
o Heather Nemour 
o Marcelo Podesta 
o Rosa Ana Lozada 
o Sherry Casper 

• Open discussion occurred with input from 
Council members and public. 
 
 
 
 

 

5

https://www.sandiegorxabusetaskforce.org/fentanyl-warning
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_act/mhsa.html
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_act/mhsa.html
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/documents/NOC/MHSA/MHSA%20FY%202021-22%20Annual%20Update.pdf
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/documents/NOC/MHSA/MHSA%20FY%202021-22%20Annual%20Update.pdf
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/documents/NOC/MHSA/MHSA%20FY%202021-22%20Annual%20Update.pdf
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/documents/NOC/MHSA/MHSA%20FY%202021-22%20Annual%20Update.pdf


   

3 | P a g e  
 

ITEM SUMMARY AND ACTION ITEMS 
VI. Announcements (Suzette Southfox) – Polling Question #2  
• California LGBTQ Health and Human Services Virtual Convening scheduled for August 

9-13, 2021. Registration at: https://www.eventbrite.com/e/california-lgbtq-health-and-
human-services-virtual-convening-registration-162482163525-Handout-Page 87 

• Virtual Event in Spanish focused on LGBTQ+ education for the Latinx/e community on 
August 13, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. Registration at: https://www.jfssd.org/lgbtq-Handout-Page 
88 

• Brain XP (Christine Frey) presents: Back to School Anxiety Video Event for Teens on 
August 18, 2021. Visit https://www.brainxp.org/ to watch-Handout-Page 89 

• Prescription Drug Abuse Task Force (PDATF) Quarterly Meeting (virtual) on August 20, 
2021 from 9:00 to 11:00 A.M. Registration at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_S25AifKcRmu0h8egUFlu-Q-Handout-
Page 90 

• New, Current, and Former Foster and Probation Youth Stimulus Money-Deadline is 
September 3, 2021-Handout-Pages 91-94 

• Recovery Happens, Saturday, September 18, 2021, from 10:00 to 11:30 A.M. (Free 
virtual event). Exhibitor registrations is open through September 15, 2021-Handouts-
Pages 95-96 

• Directing Change: Art for Change: Celebration of our Hope & Justice Initiative on 
September 22, 2021 from 5:30 to 8:00 P.M.-Handout-Page 97 
 

• Suzette Southfox reviewed announcements. 

VII. Action Items Action Due/Status 
No Action Items Not Applicable 

VIII. Polling Questions (Based on 58 respondents out of 64 participants) 
1. Planning ahead, which meeting format do you prefer? (Hybrid is currently not an option) 

 
2. In a scale of 1 - 5 (1 the lowest and 5 the highest) how would you rate the relevance and your interest with today’s Council meeting? 

 
 

 
Next Meeting: Virtual Council Meeting 
Date: Monday, September 13, 2021 
Time: 9:00-10:30 AM 
 

 

 

 

 

 

6

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/california-lgbtq-health-and-human-services-virtual-convening-registration-162482163525
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/california-lgbtq-health-and-human-services-virtual-convening-registration-162482163525
https://www.jfssd.org/lgbtq
https://www.brainxp.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_S25AifKcRmu0h8egUFlu-Q


   

4 | P a g e  
 

+=Member in Attendance O=Absent  E=Excused 

CONSTITUENCY MEMBER STATUS ALTERNATE STATUS 
PUBLIC SECTOR 

1 Behavioral Health Advisory Board (BHAB) Bill Stewart  + Rebecca Hernandez O 

2 Behavioral Health Services (BHS) Dr. Laura Vleugels E Dr. Charmi Patel E 

3 Public Safety Group/ Probation Lisa Sawin + Chrystal Sweet O 

4 Child Welfare Services (CWS) Steve Wells   + Norma Rincon O 

5 HHSA Regions VACANT  Jennifer Sovay  O 

6 Public Health Dr. Thomas R. Coleman O Adrienne Yancey + 

7 Juvenile Court H. Ana Espana O Beth Brown  O 

8 First 5 Commission Alethea Arguilez O Dulce Cahue-Aguilar O 

EDUCATION SECTOR 
9 Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) Russell Coronado O VACANT  

10 Regular Education 
Pupil Personnel Services 

Violeta Mora + Margaret Sedor O 

11 School Board Barbara Ryan + VACANT  

12    Special Education Yuka Sakamoto + Misty Bonta O 

PRIVATE SECTOR 
13 San Diego Regional Center (SDRC) for 

Developmentally Disabled  
Peggie Webb O Therese Davis  O 

14 Alcohol and Drug Service Provider Association 
(ADSPA) 

Angela Rowe E John Laidlaw O 

15 Alcohol and Drug Service Provider Association 
(ADSPA) 

Marisa Varond + Claudette Allen Butler O 

16 Mental Health Contractors Association Julie McPherson E Minola Clark Manson + 

17 Mental Health Contractors Association 
(MHCA) 

Laura Beadles O Golby Rahimi + 

18 Fee- For-Service (FFS) Network Dr. Sherry Casper + Marcelo A. Podesta + 

19 Managed Care Health Plan George Scolari + Kathleen Lang + 

20 Healthcare/ Pediatrician Dr. Pradeep Gidwani O VACANT  

FAMILY AND YOUTH SECTOR 
21 Family and Youth Liaison Suzette Southfox + VACANT  

22 Caregiver of child/youth served by the Public 
Health System 

Debbie Dennison 
 

+ Karilyn “Kari” Perry E 

23 Youth served by the Public Health System (up 
to age 26) 

Christine Frey + Emma Eldredge  + 

24 Youth served by the public health system (up 
to age 26) 

Micaela Cunningham + VACANT 
 

 

SUB-COMMITTEES (Non-voting members unless a member of the Council) 
- Executive Sub-Committee 

 
Suzette Southfox / 
Jaime Tate Symons 

+/+   

-  CADRE CYF Julie McPherson/ 
Marisa Varond 

E/+   

7



   

5 | P a g e  
 

  

Zoom Listed Meeting Attendees: 71 

Adrienne Yancey Edgar Sierra Jerelyn Bourdage Rose Woods 
Aisha Pope Edith Mohler Kathleen Lang Seth Williams 
Alec Rodney Eileen Quinn-O'Malley Kimberly Pettiford Shakara Thompson 
Amanda Kaufman Elizabeth Dauz LaTysa Flowers Shannon Jackson 
Amanda Lance-Sexton Emma Eldredge Laura Tancredi-Baese Sherry Casper 
Amy Chadwick Erick Mora Lisa Sawin Shewa Legesse 
Angela Solom Frank Congine Mara Madrigal-Weiss Stephanie Escobar 
Barbara Ryan George Scolari Marcelo Podesta Steven Wells 
Bill Stewart Ginger Bial Marisa Varond Suzette Southfox 
Carole Steele Golby Rahimi Mark Bartlett Teresa Kang 
Celeste Hunter Grisel Ortega-Vaca Micaela Cunningham Veronica Gallacher 
Cheryl Rode Heather Nemour Michael Miller Violeta Mora 
Christina Bruce Ingrid Alvarez-Ron Michelle Hogan Wendy Maramba 
Christine Marie Frey Jaime Tate-Symons Michelle Ly Yael Koenig 
Claire Riley Janet Cacho Minola Manson Yuka Sakamoto 
Danyte Mockus-
Valenzuela 

 

Jay Martinez Rebecca Raymond Unknown Call In User #1 

Darwin Espejo Jean McDonald Renee Cookson Unknown Call In User #2 
Debbie Dennison Jennifer Kennedy  Rosa Ana Lozada  

 

Sub-Committees/Sectors/Workgroups Meetings Information: 

Due to COVID-19, most of the sub-committees’ meetings are occurring virtually 
Please reach out to the sector lead or Executive Subcommittee member to obtain location/link 

             Behavioral Health Advisory Board (BHAB) meeting: Meets the first Thursday of the month from 2:30 to 5:00 PM 
 Outcomes: Meets the first Tuesday of every other month from 11:30 AM to 12:30 PM 
 Early Childhood: Meets the second Monday of the month from 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM 

Education Advisory Ad Hoc: Meets as Needed. 
 TAY Council: Meets the fourth Wednesday of the month 3:00 to 4:30 PM 

CYF CADRE: Meets quarterly on the second Thursday of the month from 1:30 to 3:00 PM 
CYF System of Care Training Academy: Meets on the first Wednesday of the month from 9:00 to 10:00 AM 

 CCRT: Meets the first Friday of the month from 10:00 to 11:30 AM 
Family and Youth as Partners: Meets every third Thursday of the month from 1:30 to 3:00 PM  

 Private Sector: Ad Hoc/Meets as needed. 
 

 Cultural Competence Resource Team (CCRT) Rosa Ana Lozada +   

- Early Childhood Sub-Committee Aisha Pope/Ginger Bial +/+   

- Education Sub-Committee Heather Nemour/Violeta 
Mora 

+/+  
 

 

- Family and Youth as Partners Sub-Committee Suzette Southfox 
 

+   

- Outcomes Sub-Committee Emily Trask/Eileen 
Quinn-O’Malley 

O/+   

- Training Sub-Committee Rose Woods +   

8



 

 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

NORA VARGAS 
First District 

 
JOEL ANDERSON 

Second District 
 

TERRA LAWSON-REMER 
Third District 

 
NATHAN FLETCHER 

Fourth District 
 

JIM DESMOND 
Fifth District 

 

Legistar v1.0  1 

 

DATE: August 17, 2021  01 
        
TO: Board of Supervisors 
 
SUBJECT 
..Title 

AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION  FOR LEGAL REPRESENTATION 
FOR DETAINED IMMIGRANTS FACING REMOVAL PROCEEDINGS AND 
RECEIVE REPORT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 
..Body 

OVERVIEW 
On May 4, 2021 (5), the Board of Supervisors (Board) directed the Chief Administrative Officer 
to work with the Director of the Office of Assigned Counsel (OAC) of the Public Defender's 
Office to establish a permanent Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program. As a step to 
establishing the new program, the Board directed County staff to establish a one-year pilot 
program with a Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget of $5,000,000, including up to $500,000 in 
translation services, and directing OAC to work with the Department of Purchasing and 
Contracting to manage contracting of cases and services to various immigrant defense agencies 
as part of the pilot. The Board also directed County staff to return with a permanent program 
plan for providing legal representation for detained immigrants under a universal representation 
model to include annual reporting on required statistical information; a case management system 
in the OAC to allow the County to track program data and outcomes; and lessons learned from 
the pilot program and best practices in similar programs in other counties.  
 
In response to Board direction, County staff have developed an approach to implement a one-
year pilot program to provide no-cost legal defense services to detained immigrants facing 
deportation or removal proceedings in San Diego County through contracted services, and a plan 
for updating and continuing the permanent Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program after the 
initial pilot project. 
 
Today’s request is to authorize the Director of the Department of Purchasing and Contracting to 
issue a competitive solicitation for legal representation for detained immigrants to initiate the 
pilot program and for the Board to receive a report on the proposed plan for the Immigrant 
Rights Legal Defense Program. Staff will provide a report to the Board regarding any 
modifications to the plan based on lessons learned from the initial pilot project and return to the 
Board to present future program requests. 
 
 
 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION  FOR LEGAL 
REPRESENTATION FOR DETAINED IMMIGRANTS FACING REMOVAL 
PROCEEDINGS AND RECEIVE REPORT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  2 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

1. In accordance with Section 401, Article XXIII of the County Administrative Code 
authorize the Director, Department of Purchasing and Contracting to issue a Competitive 
Solicitation for the Immigrant Rights Legal Defense pilot project, and upon successful 
negotiations and determination of a fair and reasonable price, award a contract(s) for a 
period subject to the availability of funds; and to amend the contract(s) as needed to 
reflect changes in services and funding allocation, subject to the approval of the Public 
Defender. 
 

2. Receive report of the plan for the Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program. 
 
 
EQUITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
The proposed actions are the first steps in creating an Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program 
in the San Diego County region to promote equitable access for detained immigrants. Inequities 
exist in our legal system when immigrants facing removal proceedings are not afforded legal 
counsel. Due to legal costs, these inequities disproportionately impact low-income individuals, 
who, without access to legal representation, are unable to navigate through the complexities of 
the immigration court process. Navigation is made more complex when individuals are left 
without reliable interpreters and translations, and language becomes an additional barrier. To 
build a program that addresses the needs of the community, feedback from immigrant advocates 
and organizations was solicited through an industry day and formal request for information.  
Community engagement will be ongoing through the construction and execution of the pilot 
project. It is anticipated that these actions will positively impact the low-income, immigrant 
community by removing barriers to legal representation and expanding access to no cost legal 
services. Detained immigrants who receive the legal services will be subject to no cost or fees. 
With these actions, the County will continue its commitment to actively provide services to our 
most vulnerable populations. Expanded access to counsel regardless of ability to pay will 
advance fairness in due process for detained immigrants and reduce economic challenges and 
family separation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funds for this request are included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operational Plan for the Public 
Defender. If approved, this request will result in estimated costs and revenue of $5,000,000 in 
Fiscal Year 2021-22. The funding source is General Fund Fund Balance. Following the pilot 
period, any program recommendations and associated funding requests will be presented to the 
Board.  There is no change in net General Fund cost and no additional staff years.  
 
BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
..Details 

ADVISORY BOARD STATEMENT 
N/A 

9



SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION  FOR LEGAL 
REPRESENTATION FOR DETAINED IMMIGRANTS FACING REMOVAL 
PROCEEDINGS AND RECEIVE REPORT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  3 
 

BACKGROUND 
On May 4, 2021 (5), the Board of Supervisors (Board) directed the Chief Administrative Officer 
(CAO) to establish a permanent Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program with a first step to 
include establishing a (1) year pilot program with a Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget of $5,000,000, 
including up to $500,000 for translation services.  The program is to be housed within the Public 
Defender’s Office of Assigned Counsel (OAC). The Board directed OAC to work with the 
Department of Purchasing and Contracting (DPC) to manage the contracting of cases to various 
immigrant defense agencies and non-profits to provide no-cost legal representation to detained 
immigrants facing deportation or removal proceedings. The CAO and OAC were directed to 
return to the Board with a permanent program plan.    
 
Approximately 20-25 cases are heard per day in the United States’ Department of Justice, 
Executive Office for Immigration Review’s (EOIR) San Diego Immigration Court, which is the 
primary calendar for immigration matters involving people in local federal detention. The 
majority of these cases involve unrepresented detained immigrants who would likely be eligible 
for County pilot services; however, the actual number of cases and individuals who can be 
reached through the funded one-year pilot program is yet unknown. An important goal of the 
pilot program will be to help the County understand the case volume and costs associated with a 
universal Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program, as well as the needs of detained immigrants 
and their families that should be addressed as part of the program. The capacity of community 
organizations to provide universal representation, and other information necessary for a 
permanent program will be collected and analyzed. Lessons learned from the pilot will inform 
program plan updates and guide future budget requests. Community stakeholders will be 
formally incorporated into pilot program review structure, and program plan updates will include 
their input.  
 
The initial plan for the Immigrant Rights Legal Defense Program includes the following 
elements: 

 
 Universal and quality representation for detained immigrants (Merits-blind case 

assignment) 
o Ancillary services, interpretation, and translation 
o Case Management 
o The development of an annual report 

 Ongoing review of the local program and best practices of similar programs.  This 
will be accomplished through:   
o Ongoing community outreach and stakeholder participation   
o Coordination with the Office of Immigrant and Refugee Affairs 

 
Universal and Quality Representation for detained immigrants 
 
Detained immigrants may face removal or deportation for a variety of reasons, and their stories 
and circumstances vary. The fundamental right to due process and quality legal representation of 
every person, regardless of why an individual is detained and facing deportation, undergirds the 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION  FOR LEGAL 
REPRESENTATION FOR DETAINED IMMIGRANTS FACING REMOVAL 
PROCEEDINGS AND RECEIVE REPORT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  4 
 

proposed program and universal representation model. In this model, any detained immigrant 
will be eligible for representation if they have no private counsel, or alternative non-profit 
representation and cannot afford private representation. There are no eligibility criteria based on 
the facts of the immigrants’ detention nor any screening aimed at accepting only “strong” cases. 
This system is, therefore, “merits blind.” 
 
To provide a quality legal defense, representation will begin as early as possible for detained 
immigrants and extend through the life of their case. Organizations providing representation and 
services will be required to utilize a merits-blind universal and random case assignment process. 
Cases will be supported by translation services, appropriate experts, investigative work, and 
other ancillary services.  Organizations will coordinate access to continued legal defense for 
clients if a case is transferred outside of San Diego County. Contracted providers will be required 
to utilize case management systems and to track and report case data to the OAC.  Case 
management systems will allow contractors to manage and anticipate key events in each 
immigration case and to collect information about case types, volumes, duration, outcomes, 
ancillary services, and costs. 
 
As previously directed by the Board, the OAC will develop an annual report on program 
activities to include data and information compiled from the case management system.   
 
Community Outreach and Best Practice review  
 
As part of developing the solicitation requirements and program plan, the OAC, DPC and CAO 
staff have conducted reviews of programs in other jurisdictions, including Los Angeles, San 
Francisco, Santa Clara, and Alameda Counties; municipalities such as Santa Ana and Long 
Beach; and out-of-state programs in New York City and Harris County, Texas.  County staff has 
also reviewed program summaries and best practice recommendations regarding programs 
operated throughout the country prepared by the VERA Institute of Justice, and solicited 
information and expertise on best practices and program design from immigrant rights defense 
entities and community groups through a Request for Information that included an Industry Day 
attended by stakeholders and service providers. County staff has conferred with EOIR officials, 
immigration court judicial officers, and Immigration and Custom Enforcement (ICE) and 
Enforcement Removal Operations (ERO) officers about court procedures and detention 
operations. County staff will continue outreach efforts to other jurisdictions and officials, and 
conduct best practices reviews as part of ongoing program monitoring and updates.  
 
The ongoing community outreach and best practice reviews have identified several elements that 
that are essential to program success. One is ongoing program input and oversight by 
stakeholders. As part of the pilot program and similar to programs in other jurisdictions,  the 
OAC plans to convene a stakeholder review group at least quarterly. The stakeholder group will 
include immigration defense experts and immigrant community members and advocates. 
Stakeholders will receive regular program updates and provide feedback and community input. 
Expert stakeholder input will be sought for problem solving in some cases to tailor legal 
approaches and services to unique immigrant needs. 

10



SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION  FOR LEGAL 
REPRESENTATION FOR DETAINED IMMIGRANTS FACING REMOVAL 
PROCEEDINGS AND RECEIVE REPORT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  5 
 

 
Following the May 4, 2021, Board direction to establish the Immigrant Rights Legal Defense 
Program, the Board directed the creation of an Office of Immigrant and Refugee Affairs within 
the Health and Human Services Agency (HHSA) on June 8, 2021 (10). This office is currently in 
development, and OAC has coordinated with HHSA on the implementation of the Immigrant 
Rights Legal Defense Program. OAC will work with the Office of Immigrant and Refugee 
Affairs, once established, to coordinate with immigrant communities and create links to program 
referrals in the future, as directed by the Board. 
 
Today’s actions would authorize a competitive solicitation supporting the Immigrant Rights 
Legal Defense Program plan. Staff will report program plan updates and the results of the initial 
pilot to the Board and return to the Board with any future requests in support of the program. 
 
LINKAGE TO THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO STRATEGIC PLAN 
Today’s proposed actions support the Living Safely Initiative of the County of San Diego’s 
2021-2026 Strategic Plan by expanding access to legal representation services to our vulnerable 
detained immigrant population throughout the region, providing public services that build strong 
communities.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
HELEN N. ROBBINS-MEYER 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 
 
 
  

11



COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

AGENDA ITEM

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

NORA VARGAS
First District

JOEL ANDERSON
Second District

TERRA LAWSON-REMER
Third District

NATHAN FLETCHER
Fourth District

JIM DESMOND
Fifth District

Legistar v1.0 1 

DATE: August 17, 2021 03
TO: Board of Supervisors

SUBJECT
..Title

RATIFY MEMBERSHIP OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE JUVENILE JUSTICE 
COORDINATING COUNCIL REGARDING JUVENILE JUSTICE REALIGNMENT
(DISTRICTS: ALL)
..Body

OVERVIEW
In 2020, the State Legislature enacted, and the Governor signed, Senate Bill 823, Juvenile Justice 
Realignment, which authorized the phased closure of the State Division of Juvenile Justice 
correctional facilities housing youth, realigned the responsibility for these youth to counties and 
provided a funding allocation to counties. The statute, Welfare and Institution Code W.I.C. 1995,
requires that, to receive the funding, a county shall create a subcommittee of the multiagency 
juvenile justice coordinating council to develop a plan describing the facilities, programs, 
placements, services, supervision and reentry strategies that are needed to provide appropriate 
rehabilitation and supervision services for this population. The required members of the 
subcommittee are also set forth in W.I.C. 1995. This action is to request adoption of a resolution 
with an effective date of January 1, 2021, ratifying and establishing the formation of the 
subcommittee and the authority of the Chief Probation Officer to sign documents related to the 
juvenile justice realignment State funding as well as related grant documents, contracts, 
amendments or extensions with the State of California.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

1. In accordance with California Welfare and Institutions Code section 1995 and Board Policy
A-74, Citizen Participation in County Boards, Commissions and Committees, ratify the
formation of a Juvenile Justice Realignment Subcommittee of the Juvenile Justice
Coordinating Council.

2. Adopt a Resolution entitled, A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ESTABLISHING MEMBERSHIP OF A
SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE JUVENILE JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL
REGARDING JUVENILE JUSTICE REALIGNMENT (SENATE BILL 823)

SUBJECT: RATIFY MEMBERSHIP OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE JUVENILE 
JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL REGARDING JUVENILE 
JUSTICE REALIGNMENT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  2 
 

3. Ratify the submission of SB 823 State funding documents and authorize the Chief 
Probation Officer to sign documents related to the juvenile justice realignment State 
funding as well as related grant documents, contracts, amendments or extensions with the 
State of California.  

 
EQUITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
These requested actions are in support of the implementation of state law transferring the 
responsibility for the care and support of certain juveniles in the justice system from the State to 
the counties.  State law (SB 823) determined that youth formerly housed in state facilities should 
receive care closer to their families and communities. Counties are required to develop a plan for 
the care of these youth through a subcommittee of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council.  The 
subcommittee is required to include no fewer than three community members with experience 
providing services, who are youth justice advocates or have been involved in the juvenile justice 
system.  This subcommittee has received community input to develop a plan for providing a range 
of rehabilitative and supportive services to these youth.  The subcommittee has reviewed data on 
the needs and characteristics, including race and ethnicity, of the youth previously housed in state 
facilities.  As the local program for care and support of these youth is developed and implemented 
and updated every three years, program outcomes will be reported to the subcommittee, with 
information on outcomes disaggregated by race and ethnicity, to continue to support positive 
outcomes for all youth.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact as a result of the requested actions. 
 
BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
..Details 

ADVISORY BOARD STATEMENT 
On August 18, 2021, the Subcommittee as described in the Resolution will present the plan 
described in Welfare and Institution Code 1995 to the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Senate Bill 823 (Chapter 337, Statutes of 2020) authorized the phased closure of the State Division 
of Juvenile Justice correctional facilities housing youth and realigned the responsibility for these 
youth to counties. With this action, counties now have the responsibility for all youth in the 
juvenile justice system.  The state will be providing annual funding for county governments to 
fulfill this new responsibility. To receive the funding, the statute, W.I.C. 1995, requires that a 
county shall create a subcommittee of the multiagency juvenile justice coordinating council and 
develop a plan regarding care and services for these youth. In San Diego County, the coordinating 
council is known as the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council (JJCC). The Juvenile Justice 
Coordinating Council facilitated the creation of the subcommittee. W.I.C. 1995 sets forth the 
required membership of the subcommittee which includes: the Interim Chief Probation Officer as 
chair, the Presiding Judge of the Juvenile Court, representatives from the District Attorney’s 
Office, the Public Defender’s Office, the Health and Human Services Agency, the County Office 

12



SUBJECT: RATIFY MEMBERSHIP OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE JUVENILE 
JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL REGARDING JUVENILE 
JUSTICE REALIGNMENT (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  3 
 

of Education, and three community youth advocates including an individual with lived youth 
justice system experience.  In developing the plan to describe the facilities, programs, placements, 
services, supervision and reentry strategies that are needed to provide appropriate rehabilitation 
and supervision services for this population, the subcommittee has worked with juvenile justice 
representatives and received public input. This plan will be presented to the Board at a future 
meeting and then submitted to the State Office of Youth and Community Restoration within the 
California Health and Human Services Agency prior to January 1, 2022.  This is a request for the 
Board to adopt a resolution with an effective date of January 1, 2021, ratifying and establishing 
the formation of the subcommittee and its membership as well as the authority of the Chief 
Probation Officer to sign documents related to the State funding for the implementation of SB 823, 
Juvenile Justice Realignment, and related grant documents, contracts, amendments or extensions 
with the State of California.   
 
LINKAGE TO THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO STRATEGIC PLAN 
Today’s proposed actions supports the Building Better Health and Living Safely Initiative of the 
County of San Diego 2021-2026 Strategic Plan by supporting the juvenile justice system that 
achieves a balance between accountability, rehabilitation and health.   
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
HELEN N. ROBBINS-MEYER 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATTACHMENT A - A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ESTABLISHING MEMBERSHIP OF A SUBCOMMITTEE OF 
THE JUVENILE JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL REGARDING JUVENILE JUSTICE 
REALIGNMENT (SENATE BILL 823) 
 
 
 
  

13



Resolution No: 
Meeting Date:  
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF SAN 
DIEGO ESTABLISHING MEMBERSHIP OF A SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE JUVENILE 

JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL REGARDING JUVENILE JUSTICE 
REALIGNMENT (SENATE BILL 823) 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill (SB) 823, Juvenile justice realignment: Office of Youth 

and Community Restoration, determined it necessary to close the Division of Juvenile 
Justice and move the jurisdiction of these youth to local county jurisdictions to ensure 
that justice-involved youth are closer to their families and communities and receive age-
appropriate treatment; and  
 

WHEREAS, each county seeking funding must create a subcommittee of the 
Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council to develop a plan describing the facilities, 
programs, placements, services, supervision and reentry strategies that are needed to 
provide appropriate rehabilitation and supervision services for the population affected by 
the juvenile justice realignment (Welfare and Institutions Code section 1995); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council SB 823 Subcommittee 
shall be composed of the chief probation officer, as the chair, and one representative each 
from the district attorney’s office, the public defender’s office, the department of social 
services, the department of mental health, the county office of education or a school 
district, a representative from the court, and no fewer than three community members 
who shall be defined as individuals who have experience providing community-based 
youth services, youth justice advocates with expertise and knowledge of the juvenile 
justice system, or have been involved in the juvenile justice systems. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2021, 
pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) section 1995, the San Diego County 
Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council SB 823 Subcommittee (“Subcommittee”) shall 
consist of:  
 
 Cesar Escuro, or designee, Interim Chief Probation Officer, Chair 
 Hon. Ana España, Presiding Judge, Juvenile Court 
 Lisa Weinreb, District Attorney’s Office 
 Mary Beth Wirkus, Public Defender’s Office 
 Fran Cooper, Behavioral Health Services 
 Yael Koenig, Health and Human Services Agency 
 Tracy Thompson, County Office of Education 
 Laila Aziz, Community Representative, Pillars of the Community 

 D’Andre Brooks, Community Representative, Lived-Experience 
 Joy Singleton, Community Representative, Youth Advocate, Singleton Law Firm 
 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this Subcommittee shall fulfill the duties of 
implementing SB 823 as outlined in section 1995 of the Welfare and Institution Code, 
including developing a plan describing the facilities, programs, placements, services, 
supervision and reentry strategies that are needed to provide appropriate rehabilitation 
and supervision services for the population affected by the juvenile justice realignment. 

 
 IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that effective July 1, 2022, composition of the 
Subcommittee shall consist of: 
 

(a) The Chief Probation Officer, or designee, Chair 
(b) Juvenile Presiding Judge, or designee 
(c) Chief Deputy District Attorney, Juvenile Division, or designee 
(d) Chief Deputy Public Defender, Juvenile Division, or designee 
(e) Director, Behavioral Health Services, Health and Human Services Agency, or 

designee 
(f) Agency Director, Health and Human Services Agency, or designee 
(g) Executive Director of the San Diego County Office of Education Juvenile Court 

and Community Schools, or designee 
(h) Three (3) community representatives, as designed under section 1995 of the 

Welfare and Institutions Code.  The community representatives shall be appointed 
by a majority of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council   

 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the community representatives shall serve 

for three (3) years and may serve a maximum of two consecutive terms. The other 
members may serve a term consistent with their employment in that job title.   

 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Subcommittee members shall not receive 

travel expenses or compensation.  
 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Probation Officer is authorized to 
sign documents related to State funding as well as related grant documents, contracts, 
amendments or extensions with the State of California. 

 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be reviewed as part of 

the regularly scheduled sunset review process.  
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY  
COUNTY COUNSEL  
BY  
Dana Maier, Senior Deputy County Counsel 

14



 

 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

NORA VARGAS 
First District 

 
JOEL ANDERSON 

Second District 
 

TERRA LAWSON-REMER 
Third District 

 
NATHAN FLETCHER 

Fourth District 
 

JIM DESMOND 
Fifth District 

 

Legistar v1.0  1 

 

DATE: August 17, 2021  05 
        
TO: Board of Supervisors 

 
SUBJECT 
..Title 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY – DEDICATING CRIMINAL FINES TO SERVICES FOR K-12 
YOUTH (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 
..Body 

OVERVIEW 
The San Diego County District Attorney’s Office has prosecuted one of the nation’s largest fraud 
schemes targeting state dollars intended for kindergarten through 12th grade education. The 
defendants pled guilty to felony charges including conspiracy and conflict of interest and over 
$200 million in assets and fraudulently billed educational funds was recovered, one of the nation’s 
largest recoveries. 
 
This is one of the most complex fraud cases prosecuted by the San Diego District Attorney’s Office 
resulting in a 235-page indictment prosecuted by expert prosecutors, investigators, and staff in the 
Public Integrity Unit of the District Attorney’s Office.  Due to the complexity and impact of the 
case, it has been assigned to the Honorable Frederick Link, Superior Court for all purposes.  Judge 
Link will be ruling on fines, restitution and other aspects of the case.   
 
Penal Code section 186.11 is a specific allegation in criminal cases where there has been a “great 
taking” and allows for the of seizure of assets and provides the court with the ability to fine the 
defendants at the time of sentencing. Should a fine be imposed, it can be no greater than 30% of 
the total recovery and would be deposited in the County Treasurer-Tax Collector to be dispersed 
according to applicable law.   
 
The District Attorney’s Office recommends any fines imposed by the court related to this case be 
earmarked and exclusively dedicated to programs that directly serve the needs of K-12 children in 
San Diego County in the areas supporting educational equity and acceleration of learning, 
behavioral health needs, housing and food stability needs, mentorship, and other needs that allow 
children to thrive.  

In an effort to assure resources support the intended purpose, today’s action will establish a trust 
fund to receive any fines related to this case and authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to 
collaborate with appropriate stakeholders including but not limited to the District Attorney, Health 
and Human Services Agency, Office of Equity and Racial Justice and the County Office of 
Education to establish a program plan to support, promote and improve educational options for 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT ATTORNEY – DEDICATING CRIMINAL FINES TO 
SERVICES FOR  K-12 YOUTH (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  2 
 

San Diego County youth and return to your board in 90 days with recommendations for the use of 
these funds. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

1. Direct the Auditor and Controller to establish an interest-bearing trust fund to deposit funds 
received through fines related to this case, and pursuant to Penal Code section 186.11 (i) 
(4), allocate proceeds from the fine first to reimburse the District Attorney’s Office for the 
reasonable costs of investigation and prosecution of this case, as mandated by law, and 
then to programs and services related to the supporting educational needs and opportunities 
for K-12 youth in San Diego County. 
 

2. Authorize the Chief Administrative Officer to collaborate with stakeholders to establish a 
program plan to support, promote and improve educational options for San Diego County 
children, including processes for developing recommendations regarding the use of these 
funds, and return to the Board in 90 days. 

 
EQUITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
The District Attorney’s Office recognizes the detrimental impact schemes targeting youth have 
on our residents and the safety of our communities.  The District Attorney’s Office Public 
Integrity Unit investigates and prosecutes cases involving corruption by public officials and 
employees in their official capacities or in the performance of their duties.  

As part of the prosecutions and during the resolution of the case, the unit works to maximize the 
recovery of those dollars and to make whole from where the loss occurs as well as those who lost 
services due to the crime.  
 
The earmark and allocation of fines in this case to the needs of K-12 youth across the county 
through the lens of need and equity will serve to improve outcomes for youth and address any 
inequities with an emphasis on underserved communities.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal impact is unknown at this time. There will be no change in net General Fund cost no 
additional staff years. 
 
BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
..Details 

ADVISORY BOARD STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
BACKGROUND 
The San Diego District Attorney’s Office has prosecuted one of the nation’s largest fraud schemes 
targeting state dollars intended for Kindergarten through 12th grade education. Unraveling this 

15



SUBJECT: DISTRICT ATTORNEY – DEDICATING CRIMINAL FINES TO 
SERVICES FOR  K-12 YOUTH (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  3 
 

complex scheme was the result of over a year of persistent and dedicated work by the District 
Attorney’s Public Integrity Unit.  
 
The Public Integrity Unit investigates and prosecutes public officials and individuals with control 
of public dollars accused of wrongdoing. As part of the prosecution and during the resolution of 
the case the unit works to maximize the recovery of those dollars and to make whole those who 
suffered a loss or lost services due to the crime. Fines serve to help recover prosecution costs and 
reinforce wrongdoer accountability providing a deterrence effect for those who might consider 
stealing from public agencies.  Pursuant to Penal Code section 186.11 (i) (4), the proceeds from 
the fine first shall be used by a county to reimburse local prosecutors and enforcement agencies 
for the reasonable costs of investigation and prosecution of cases brought pursuant to this section. 
 
Two defendants, who operated and controlled 19 California online charter schools as well as four 
business entities, were indicted by a grand jury along with nine other defendants in May of 2019 
on hundreds of criminal counts. The two main defendants pled guilty in San Diego Superior Court 
to a variety of felony criminal charges including conspiracy and conflict of interest and must return 
over $200 million in assets and fraudulently billed educational funds. The main defendants are 
awaiting sentencing.  
 
The timing of the exposure of the abuses in the online charter school arena has saved the state 
additional funds in the hundreds of millions of dollars, as the case made school districts aware of 
billing abuses and oversight concerns. The legislature has cited the San Diego County case in order 
to take steps to curtail abuses and loopholes in the system. 
 
Recovery of funds obtained as a result of these criminal activities will be in excess of $200 million 
dollars, and as per Penal Code section 186.11 are subject to fines up to 30%. Currently, funds are 
being held by a court appointed receiver. If ordered by the Judge, the receiver would transfer the 
recovered funds to the treasurer of the county to be dispersed according to applicable law.    

In today’s action, the District Attorney’s Office recommends that any fines imposed and directed 
to the treasurer of the county be set aside and exclusively dedicated to programs that serve the 
educational needs of children in San Diego County. This action recommends that stakeholders 
including but not limited to the District Attorney, Health and Human Services Agency, Office of 
Equity and Racial Justice and the County Office of Education establish a program plan to support, 
promote and improve educational options for San Diego and return to the Board in 90 days.  Since 
these funds were derived from the misappropriation of educational dollars, their best use would be 
to directly support local K-12 programs that promote educational equity, the acceleration of 
learning, behavioral health, housing, food stability, and mentorship programs as well as other 
needed services that enable children to thrive. 

LINKAGE TO THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO STRATEGIC PLAN 
Today’s proposed actions support the Living Safely Initiative of the County of San Diego’s 
2021-26 Strategic Plan by setting aside this funding to serve the needs of children in San Diego 
County. 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT ATTORNEY – DEDICATING CRIMINAL FINES TO 
SERVICES FOR  K-12 YOUTH (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 

 

Legistar v1.0  4 
 

 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
SUMMER S. STEPHAN 
District Attorney  

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 
 
 
  

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 

 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

NORA VARGAS 
First District 

 
JOEL ANDERSON 

Second District 
 

TERRA LAWSON-REMER 
Third District 

 
NATHAN FLETCHER 

Fourth District 
 

JIM DESMOND 
Fifth District 

 

Legistar v1.0  1 

 

DATE: August 31, 2021  05 
        
TO: Board of Supervisors 

 
SUBJECT 
..Title 

RECEIVE REPORT ON ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE $50 MILLION INNOVATIVE 
HOUSING TRUST FUND (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 
..Body 

OVERVIEW 
On June 20, 2017 (21), the San Diego County Board of Supervisors (Board) established the 
Innovative Housing Trust Fund (Trust Fund) to address shrinking affordable housing options 
across the region. The Board has provided a total of $50 million for the Trust Fund to foster the 
creation of affordable housing; this total is comprised of $25 million invested at the establishment 
of the Trust Fund and a second infusion of $25 million added on April 30, 2019 (7). The Trust 
Fund is the first of its kind, being the first locally funded/locally administered program to offer 
funding for affordable housing in the entire San Diego region. 
 
The $50 million invested in the Trust Fund was made available through four Notices of Funding 
Availability (NOFA) between December 2017 and March 2020. In less than three years the Trust 
Fund leveraged $567 million in other public and private funds to create and preserve 1,397 
permanent affordable housing units within 20 developments in 15 communities throughout San 
Diego County. The inventory of County of San Diego (County) funded and restricted affordable 
housing increased by 30% due to the Board’s investment in the Trust Fund. 
 
The Trust Fund spurs the production and preservation of affordable housing through enhanced 
partnerships with regional stakeholders. These efforts align with the County’s Live Well San Diego 
vision for a healthy, safe, and thriving region along with recent Board efforts in the Framework 
for Our Future as this report celebrates the accomplishments of the Trust Fund and promotes 
transparency and open government by ensuring the data related to the $50 million is available for 
the public and Board. Additionally, today’s action confirms the equitable distribution of resources 
in 15 communities that will gain much needed permanent affordable housing.  
 
Today’s action is a request for the Board to receive the report on outcomes of the Innovative 
Housing Trust Fund.  
 
 
 
 

SUBJECT: RECEIVE REPORT ON ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE $50 MILLION 
INNOVATIVE HOUSING TRUST FUND (DISTRICTS: ALL) 

 

Legistar v1.0  2 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

1. Find in accordance with Section 15060(c)(3) of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) that the receipt of the report on the status of the Innovative Housing Trust Fund 
is administrative in nature and is not a project as defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 
15378. 

2. Receive the report on outcomes of the Innovative Housing Trust Fund 
 
EQUITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
The successes of the Innovative Housing Trust Fund (Trust Fund) reported to the San Diego 
County Board of Supervisors (Board) today, contributed to the County of San Diego’s efforts in 
addressing local housing shortages which help to increase access to quality affordable housing. 
Additionally, this resulted in the creation of private sector jobs and economic opportunities in San 
Diego County. The Trust Fund was implemented with thoughtful consideration from the Board 
and community stakeholders. It is anticipated that members of all equity seeking groups will 
benefit from the developments assisted by the Trust Fund. Units created will serve an estimated 
18,000 low-income families, seniors, veterans, developmentally disabled, homeless, and homeless 
with serious mental illness through-out the 99-year affordability period. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with today’s action. There will be no change in net General 
Fund costs and no additional staff years. 
 
BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
N/A 
..Details 

 
ADVISORY BOARD STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
BACKGROUND 
With affordable housing options in the region becoming increasingly scarce, the San Diego County 
Board of Supervisors (Board) responded on June 20, 2017 (21), by creating the Innovative Housing 
Initiative (Initiative) to increase the regional supply of affordable housing. The Initiative launched 
with an initial investment of $25 million into the Innovative Housing Trust Fund (Trust Fund) and 
on April 30, 2019 (7), an additional $25 million increased the total Trust Fund to $50 million. The 
Trust Fund is structured to address housing needs by facilitating the construction, acquisition, 
and/or rehabilitation of housing for low-income households and vulnerable populations.  
 
In December 2017 and November 2018, the County of San Diego (County) issued the first two 
Notices of Funding Availability (NOFA) and awarded $25 million to 10 developments with 752 
permanent affordable housing units. This investment of $25 million leveraged over $317 million, 
indicating the value of the investment from the Trust Fund as it is leveraged with other 
development funding sources. In July 2019 and March 2020, the County issued the final two 
NOFAs and awarded another $25 million to 10 developments with 645 permanent affordable units. 
This investment leveraged approximately $250 million of other development funding sources. 

26



SUBJECT: RECEIVE REPORT ON ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE $50 MILLION 
INNOVATIVE HOUSING TRUST FUND (DISTRICTS: ALL) 

 

Legistar v1.0  3 
 

The impact of the Innovative Housing Trust Fund is significant and will lead to the creation or 
preservation of 1,397 affordable units for low-income families, seniors, veterans, and persons with 
disabilities in 20 developments throughout the region leveraging a combined $567 million dollars. 
At this time, 368 units have completed construction, 673 units are under construction, and 356 
units will be constructed and/or rehabilitated within the next one to four years. For additional 
information, see Attachment A, Innovative Housing Trust Fund Development Details.  
 
Affordable housing developed using the Trust Fund will influence the Live Well San Diego 
indicators of quality of life and align with recent Board efforts in the Framework for Our Future 
by spurring the production and preservation of affordable housing while leveraging partnerships 
with stakeholders throughout the region. This report celebrates the accomplishments of the Trust 
Fund promoting transparency and open government ensuring the data related to the $50 million is 
readily available for the public and Board. Housing produced with an investment from the Trust 
Fund will provide healthy, safe, and equitable affordable housing opportunities for individuals and 
low-income families region wide.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT 
Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines provides 
that activities identified in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines are not subject to CEQA review. 
Section 15378 provides that administrative activities of governments that will not result in a direct 
or indirect physical change in the environment are exempt from CEQA review. The proposed 
action is administrative in nature as it involves the receipt of the report on the status of the 
Innovative Housing Trust Fund. Therefore, the proposed action is not subject to CEQA review 
pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 
LINKAGE TO THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO STRATEGIC PLAN 
Today’s actions support the Sustainable Environments/Thriving Strategic Initiative in the County 
of San Diego’s 2021-2026 Strategic Plan, as well as the County’s Live Well San Diego vision, by 
providing funding for the development of safe and affordable housing in the region. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
HELEN N. ROBBINS-MEYER 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment A - Innovative Housing Trust Fund Development Details 
 
 
 
 
 

        ATTACHMENT A 
 

A-1 

INNOVATIVE HOUSING TRUST FUND  
DEVELOPMENT DETAILS 

 

Development Developer Status City / 
Community 

Board of 
Supervisor 

District 
Funding 
Award 

Total 
Units 

Valley Senior Village National CORE Securing 
Financing Escondido D3 $2,000,000 50 

Cedar & Kettner Bridge Housing Securing 
Financing 

San Diego 
Downtown D4 $1,129,238 64 

Shadow Hill National CORE Securing 
Financing Santee D2 $890,762 82 

Alora Affirmed 
Housing 

Securing 
Financing San Marcos D5 $3,700,000 100 

City Heights Place Wakeland 
Housing 

Securing 
Financing 

San Diego 
City Heights D4 $3,000,000 60 

Villa Serena National CORE Under 
Construction San Marcos D5 $5,504,285 85 

Ulric Street 
Apartments 

Community 
Housing Works 

Under 
Construction 

San Diego 
Linda Vista D4 $7,000,000 96 

Paseo Artist Village Community 
Housing Works 

Under 
Construction Vista D5 $625,000 60 

Jamboree San Ysidro 
Permanent 
Supportive Housing 

Jamboree 
Housing Corp. 

Under 
Construction 

San Diego 
San Ysidro D1 $895,715 65 

Mid-City Apartments Chelsea 
Investment Corp 

Under 
Construction 

San Diego 
Ken-Tal D4 $4,500,000 78 

Apollo Chelsea 
Investment Corp 

Under 
Construction Poway D2 $450,000 44 

Alpine Family 
Apartments 

Milestone 
Housing Group 

Under 
Construction Alpine D2 $4,280,000 38 

Valencia Pointe CRP Affordable 
Housing 

Under 
Construction 

San Diego 
Encanto D4 $5,200,000 102 

El Cajon Senior 
Veterans Apartments SDCHC Under 

Construction El Cajon D2 $1,350,000 9 

Casa Anita Wakeland 
Housing 

Under 
Construction Chula Vista D1 $3,000,000 96 

Paseo la Paz Chelsea 
Investment Corp Completed San Diego 

San Ysidro D1 $400,000 139 

Villa de Vida Mercy Housing Completed Poway D2 $3,445,000 54 

Playa Del Sol Chelsea 
Investment Corp Completed San Diego 

Otay Mesa D1 $1,500,000 42 

Vista Del Puente Townspeople Completed San Diego 
Southcrest D1 $380,000 52 

The Grove Wakeland 
Housing Completed Vista D5 $750,000 81 

TOTALS $50,000,000 1,397 
 

  

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



 

 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

NORA VARGAS 
First District 

 
JOEL ANDERSON 

Second District 
 

TERRA LAWSON-REMER 
Third District 

 
NATHAN FLETCHER 

Fourth District 
 

JIM DESMOND 
Fifth District 

 

leister v1.0  1 

 

DATE: August 31, 2021  08 
        
TO: Board of Supervisors 

 
SUBJECT: 
..Title 

AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION FOR AN ADMINISTRATOR FOR 
HOMELESS HOUSING AND SUPPORT TO SERVE PEOPLE WITH HIGH NEEDS 
EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS IN SAN DIEGO COUNTY (DISTRICTS: ALL) 
 
..Body 

OVERVIEW 
In 2017, the County of San Diego (County) received its first allocation of Housing and Disability 
Advocacy Program (HDAP) funding. HDAP offers housing related financial assistance and wrap-
around supportive services, including, but not limited to interim housing, rental assistance, housing 
navigation, case management, security deposits, utility payments, moving costs, legal services, 
and credit repair. Since 2017, HDAP combined with other funding sources has served high-needs 
populations and have allowed the contracted providers flexibility to secure housing for 594 
individuals through hotel vouchers, rental assistance and deposits, landlord incentives, storage 
fees, and structural modifications for livability. On May 31, 2022, these provider contracts will 
end; as a result, the County seeks to secure an entity to continue administration of the current 
housing subsidies for eligible tenants, as well as the capacity to add new housing rental subsidies 
and provide housing related supports for eligible individuals. The provided housing interventions 
and supports will be determined by the individual/household’s level of need, and may include 
housing navigation/locator, housing specific case management services, landlord and tenant 
supports, short-, mid- and long-term housing assistance. The housing assistance strategies could 
include bridge housing, master leasing, flat rental subsidies, shared housing, as well as other 
evidence-based housing solutions. 
 
Over the last several years, the San Diego County Board of Supervisors (Board) has demonstrated 
its commitment to housing and supports to address the needs of people experiencing and at-risk of 
homelessness. Most recently, on April 6, 2021 (06) the Board called for the establishment of the 
Department of Homeless Solutions and Equitable Communities to provide regional leadership on 
homelessness. The intent of the new department is to achieve sustained focus on the complex and 
interconnected issue of homelessness and better coordination of existing and future homeless 
activities and progress. In alignment with previous actions and in order to continue to advance the 
Board’s priorities, a homeless housing and support administrator is needed to serve persons 
experiencing homelessness.    
 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION FOR AN 
ADMINISTRATOR FOR HOMELESS HOUSING AND SUPPORT TO 
SERVE PEOPLE WITH HIGH NEEDS EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS 
IN SAN DIEGO COUNTY (DISTRICTS: ALL) 

 

Leister v1.0  2 
 

Today’s actions request the Board authorize the Director, Department of Purchasing and 
Contracting to issue a competitive solicitation for a homeless housing and support administrator. 
Additionally, today’s action requests the Board authorize application for future funding 
opportunities related to addressing homelessness. These items align with the County’s Live Well 
San Diego vision by creating an opportunity to further support the housing needs of vulnerable 
people and help them thrive to remain healthy and safe. In addition, this effort  supports the 
Framework for Our Future  which prioritizes communities and populations in San Diego that have 
been historically left behind. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

1. In accordance with Section 401, Article XXIII of the County Administrative Code, 
authorize the Director, Department of Purchasing and Contracting, to issue a competitive 
solicitation for a homeless housing and support administrator, and upon successful 
negotiations and determination of a fair and reasonable price, award a contract(s) for the 
period of up to one year and up to four option years, and up to an additional six months, if 
needed; and to amend the contract(s) to reflect changes in program, funding or service 
requirements, subject to the availability of funds and the approval of the Agency Director, 
Health and Human Services Agency.  

2. Authorize the Agency Director, Health and Human Services Agency, to apply for future 
funding opportunities related to addressing homelessness throughout the region in the 
current and future fiscal years, as they will provide overall value to the County by 
advancing efforts to reduce the number of people in the county who are at risk of or 
experiencing homelessness. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funds for this request are included in the Fiscal Year 2021-23 Operational Plan in the Health and 
Human Services Agency (HHSA). If approved, this request will result in costs and revenue of 
approximately $1,330,000 in Fiscal Year 2021-22 and costs and revenue of approximately 
$2,014,000 in Fiscal Year 2022-23. The funding sources are existing allocations of State funding 
from housing funds for Whole Person Wellness and the Housing Disability Advocacy Program. 
There will be no change in net General Fund cost and no additional staff years. 
 
BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
EQUITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
Securing an administrator for homeless housing and supports will assist those who are homeless 
or at-risk of homelessness throughout San Diego County. It is anticipated that this action will 
provide needed housing and supports to  residents who are disproportionality represented in the 
homeless system including justice involved individuals as well as Black, Indigenous and People 
of Color (BIPOC). In general, the incidence of Black, Native Americans and other persons of color 
experiencing homelessness mirrors the disparities found at the broader community levels. These 
group are over-represented in homelessness when compared to their proportion on the general 

41



SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION FOR AN 
ADMINISTRATOR FOR HOMELESS HOUSING AND SUPPORT TO 
SERVE PEOPLE WITH HIGH NEEDS EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS 
IN SAN DIEGO COUNTY (DISTRICTS: ALL) 

 

Leister v1.0  3 
 

community. Locally, Black people make up 5.5 percent of the general population with 28 percent 
represented in the homeless population, American Indian/Alaskan Native make up 1.3 percent of 
the population with 2.6 percent represented in the homeless population. In addition, Native 
Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander make up .6 percent of the population with 1.5 percent 
represented in the homeless population. As a means to drive these funds to address these inequities, 
the following actions will occur: 1. data will be collected and evaluated to identify opportunities 
of impact and program improvement. The data collection will include comparing demographics of 
the general population to those served by the program; 2. data points will be identified to drive 
goals and foster equity; 3. geographic mapping will be developed to inform place-based 
investments and 4. qualitative data from focus groups will be tracked to evaluate for program 
improvement and successes. 
 
..Details 

ADVISORY BOARD STATEMENT 
N/A 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Housing Disability Advocacy Program (HDAP) is an ongoing allocation from the Department 
of Social Services to counties funding financial assistance for flexible housing supports for 
individuals applying for disability benefits. In 2017, the County of San Diego (County) received 
its first allocation of HDAP funding. HDAP offers persons experiencing homelessness housing 
related financial assistance and wrap-around supportive services. Since 2017, HDAP combined 
with other funding sources has served high-needs populations and have allowed the contracted 
providers flexibility to secure housing for 594 individuals through hotel vouchers, rental assistance 
and deposits, landlord incentives, storage fees, and structural modifications for livability. On May 
31, 2022, these provider contracts will end; as a result, the County seeks to secure an entity to 
continue administration of the current housing subsidies for eligible tenants, as well as the capacity 
to add new housing rental subsidies and provide housing related supports for eligible individuals. 
The provided housing interventions and supports will be determined by the individual/household’s 
level of need, and may include housing navigation/locator, housing specific case management 
services, landlord and tenant supports, short-, mid- and long-term housing assistance. The housing 
assistance strategies could include bridge housing, master leasing, flat rental subsidies, shared 
housing, as well as other evidence-based housing solutions. The HDAP will provide critical 
resources by providing much needed housing resources and supports to our unhoused and at-risk 
neighbors.  
 
Utilizing HDAP funding continues the County commitment to addressing homelessness. Over the 
last several years, the San Diego County Board of Supervisors (Board) has demonstrated its focus 
on implementing effective strategies to address the needs of people experiencing homelessness. 
Most recently, on April 6, 2021 (06) the Board called for the establishment of the Department of 
Homeless Solutions and Equitable Communities to provide regional leadership on homelessness.  
 
In alignment with previous actions and in order to continue to advance the Board’s priorities, an 
administrator for homeless housing and support is needed to serve persons experiencing 
homelessness. The County seeks to secure an entity to continue administration of the current 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION FOR AN 
ADMINISTRATOR FOR HOMELESS HOUSING AND SUPPORT TO 
SERVE PEOPLE WITH HIGH NEEDS EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS 
IN SAN DIEGO COUNTY (DISTRICTS: ALL) 

 

Leister v1.0  4 
 

housing subsidies for eligible tenants, as well as the capacity to add new housing rental subsidies 
and provide housing related supports for eligible individuals. The solicited administrator would 
support opportunities for individuals who are homeless and/or at-risk of homelessness and have a 
disability. The provided housing interventions and supports will be determined by the 
individual/household’s level of need, and may include housing navigation/locator, housing 
specific case management services, landlord and tenant supports, short-, mid- and long-term 
housing assistance and administration of rental payments to landlords. The housing assistance 
strategies could include bridge housing, master leasing, flat rental subsidies, shared housing, as 
well as other evidence-based housing solutions. In sum, the Administrator will accomplish the goal 
of providing services and housing to one of our most vulnerable populations – those experiencing 
and at-risk of homelessness with a disability – through an approach that creates safe, healthy and 
thriving communities by ensuring access to housing and key supports.  
 
LINKAGE TO THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO STRATEGIC PLAN 
Today’s proposed actions support Building Better Health, Living Safely and Thriving initiatives 
in the County of San Diego’s 2021-2026 Strategic Plan, as well as the County’s Live Well San 
Diego vision by increasing the availability of housing for people experiencing homelessness 
combined with the services to meet their needs most appropriately. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
HELEN N. ROBBINS-MEYER 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 
 

42



43



44



45



YOUTH  PROGRAM SERV ICES

SOAP  MAT  Now  o f f e r i ng  Med i ca t i on  A s s i s t ed  Tr ea tmen t  t o  You th  /  A ge s  12  t o  17    
Youth and their families will receive comprehensive, strength-
based care coordination that addresses each adolescent’s
unique needs. For more detailed treatment information,
please contact the facility at the number provided.

TREATMENT

SOAP MAT, LLC is an outpatient treatment program
for substance use disorder. Our goal is to provide
affordable, medication assisted treatment (MAT),
utilizing the harm reduction model and evidence
based practices. Outcomes are geared toward higher
community functioning, yielding a decrease in
crime rates, high risk behaviors and deaths.

SOAP MAT | Now Serving Youth

Contact Information:
3230 Waring Court, Suite A
Oceanside, CA 92056
Phone: (760) 305-7528
FAX: (760) 509-4410
website: www.soapmat.com
email: info@soapmat.com

M E D I C A T I O N S  O F F E R E D  •  B u p r e n o r p h i n e  •  N a l t r e x o n e  •  M e t h a d o n e  •  S u b o x o n e

SOAP MAT will conduct assessments and intakes for youth:
Monday – Friday • 5:00 am to 1:00 pm • Ages 12 to 17  
Note the following:
Parental authorization will be required for program admission
(unless emancipated minor).
Program participation is integral to patient success.
Patient compliance, engagement, familial involvement
and service support is critical for youth long term success.

Specializing in Opioid Use Treatment
Now Offering Youth Substance Use Treatment 

PROFESS ION AL

SOAP MAT’s values include integrity, respect, unity,
and innovation.  

SOAP MAT believes that the integration of both
counseling AND medication yields successful outcomes.

SOAP MAT prioritizes diversity and inclusion:
EVERYONE IS WELCOME.

J U L Y  1 ,  2 0 2 1

46



 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
August 27, 2021 
  
  
 
TO:   Behavioral Health Advisory Board (BHAB) 
 
FROM:  Luke Bergmann, Ph.D., Director, Behavioral Health Services 
 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES DIRECTOR’S REPORT – SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 

ACTION ITEM(S): MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) ANNUAL UPDATE  
 
The County of San Diego (County), Health and Human Services (HHSA) Behavioral Health Services 
(BHS) is in the second year of implementing the MHSA Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan: 
Fiscal Years 2020-21 through 2022-23 (Three-Year Plan), approved by the San Diego County Board 
of Supervisors (Board) on October 27, 2020 (7). The MHSA Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Update 
(Annual Update) presented today includes budget and programmatic changes to the Three-Year Plan. 
The majority of services outlined in the Annual Update are a continuation of programs previously 
approved by the Board in the Three-Year Plan. As mandated by the MHSA, the Three-Year Plan and 
subsequent Annual Updates require approval by the Board prior to submission to the California Mental 
Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC).  
 
Since the establishment of the MHSA, the County has invested nearly $2 billion of MHSA funding to 
expand and enhance critical mental health programs to dramatically shift how residents of San Diego 
County access care and support for behavioral health needs through the continued development of a 
regionally distributed model of care focused on prevention and continuous care, rather than perpetual 
crisis. The County continues to make significant MHSA investments in critical prevention, treatment 
and support services through the implementation of the Three-Year Plan and subsequent Annual 
Updates.  
 
The estimated MHSA costs and revenues for FY 2021-22 are approximately $218.6 million, inclusive 
of $400,000 dedicated to the California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA), to continue 
participation in statewide prevention and early intervention campaigns and local initiatives. The funding 
source is Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). The proposed MHSA budget reflects enhanced Medi-
Cal drawdown tied to a Federal Medi-Cal Assistance Percentage (FMAP) associated with COVID-19. 
There will be no change in net General Fund cost and no additional staff years. 
 

NICK MACCHIONE, FACHE 
AGENCY DIRECTOR 

 
 

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES 

3255 CAMINO DEL RIO SOUTH, MAIL STOP P-531 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92108-3806   

(619) 563-2700 • FAX (619) 563-2705 
 

LUKE BERGMANN, Ph.D. 
DIRECTOR, BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 

47



Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 
 
Behavioral Health Services is seeking Board of Supervisor approval to: 

1. Receive and approve the Annual Update, which includes MHSA funding of approximately $218.6 
million in Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022, inclusive of $400,000 dedicated to the California Mental 
Health Services Authority. 

 
It is, THEREFORE, staff’s recommendation that BHAB supports the approvals and 
authorizations needed to implement the above recommendation. 
 

 
ACTION ITEM(S): APPOINTMENT OF THE BHAB NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
 

In September of each year, the BHAB Chairperson appoints a Nominating Committee of at least three 
BHAB members to select a slate of Executive Committee Officers to stand for election in the 2021 election 
cycle. The Nominating Committee is confirmed by the entire BHAB and will work to form the slate of 
Officers during September, for presentation to the full BHAB at the October meeting. This action seeks 
BHAB’s confirmation of the Nominating Committee comprised of: Bill Stewart, John Sturm, and Phil 
Deming. 
 
It is, THEREFORE, staff’s recommendation that your Board vote to confirm the Nominating 
Committee for the 2021 election cycle as appointed by the BHAB Chair. 
 

 
LIVE WELL SAN DIEGO UPDATES / SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
Upcoming Events 
 
Suicide Prevention Council Press Conference 
The Suicide Prevention Council (SPC) will host a press conference on Wednesday, September 8, 2021, 
from 10:00 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. at the County Administration Center East Plaza to unveil the SPC’s Report 
to the Community 2021. Board of Supervisors Chair Nathan Fletcher and Dr. Luke Bergmann will be in 
attendance. 
 
Recovery Happens Annual Community Event 
Recovery Happens 2021 will take place on Saturday, September 18, 2021, from 10:00 a.m. to 11:30 
a.m. The virtual event is a celebration of individuals on the recovery journey and those who support 
them. Chair Fletcher will virtually present a proclamation honoring National Recovery Month. Local radio 
personalities, Laura Cain and Tommy Sablan, along with San Diegans in recovery will provide 
inspiration to engage the recovery community. A virtual resource fair will also be available on the County 
of San Diego Behavioral Health Services (BHS) website during the entire month of September. 
Registration details will be made available soon through the Recovery Happens website.  
 
12th Annual Early Childhood Mental Health Conference-We Can’t Wait! 
The Children, Youth and Families (CYF) System of Care, in partnership with Early Childhood 
stakeholders, will host the 12th Annual Early Childhood Mental Health Conference: We Can’t Wait! - 
Emerging from COVID, Conflict and Chaos: Creating a Resilient Future for our Children and 
Communities. The virtual conference will be held from September 23-25, 2021. Conference presenters 
will explore early childhood development, evidence-based practices, and advances in early education 
programs and address how past and recent events have impacted the most vulnerable populations. 
More information on the conference is available at: https://www.earlychildhoodmentalhealth-
sandiego.com/. 

 
 

48

https://www.earlychildhoodmentalhealth-sandiego.com/
https://www.earlychildhoodmentalhealth-sandiego.com/


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 
 
UPDATE FROM THE CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES (CYF) SYSTEM OF CARE  
 
2021 National Association of Counties (NACo) Awards  
Two CYF programs received the 2021 National Association of Counties (NACo) Achievement Award. 
The award recognizes programs for innovative approaches to providing new or needed services, 
improving administration of existing programs, or promoting intergovernmental cooperation and 
coordination. The awarded programs are:  
 
• Pathways to Well-Being Virtual Workforce Development Training Series (Pathways) Micro-

learnings: This innovative and cost-effective online training series was developed to 
accommodate the evolving way in which information is shared with behavioral health providers and 
aims to ensure that services are delivered in a trauma-informed, client-centered manner and are 
documented to adhere to Medi-Cal standards. Pathways utilizes micro-learnings through the San 
Diego State University (SDSU) Responsive Integrated Health Solutions (RIHS) training contract 
and are structured to be eight to ten minutes long for ease of completion and retention of 
information. 
 

• SchooLink: A CYF partnership with community-based organizations and school districts 
throughout San Diego County to offer outpatient specialty mental health services (SMHS) and 
substance use disorder (SUD) treatment on school campuses that serve students on Medi-Cal and 
those who are low-income, uninsured, or underinsured. SchooLink implements a standardized 
practice across the system of care, increases collaboration between schools and providers of 
mental health and SUD treatment programs, and provides system-level data that was previously 
unavailable.  

 
CYF Council  
The CYF System of Care Council continues to meet virtually and has shifted to the Zoom platform. 
There is consistent meeting representation from the Behavioral Health Advisory Board (BHAB) by board 
member Bill Stewart. Detailed information about the CYF Council can be found at:  
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/CY
FBHSOCCouncil.html. 
 
The following were the CYF Council areas of focus for Fiscal Year 2020-21: 
• July 13, 2020- Annual CYF Council orientation 
• August 10, 2020- Strategic Planning Part I to provide Fiscal Year 2019-20 accomplishments and 

Fiscal Year 2020-21 goals 
• September 14, 2020- Strategic Planning Part II 
• October 12, 2020- Combined Councils meeting focused on transgender health across the lifespan 
• November 9, 2020- Supporting Youth Engagement: Live Well Youth Sector 
• December 14, 2020- Dark 
• January 11, 2021- Best practices for outreach during the pandemic 
• February 8, 2021- Best practices for engagement during the pandemic 
• March 8, 2021- Finalized best practices recommendations for outreach and engagement; hosted a 

Live Well Schools presentation; and discussed personal commitment to achieve inclusion and equity 
• April 12, 2021- Combined Councils meeting panel discussion on COVID-19 impacts on BHS 

Systems of Care 
• May 10, 2021- Breakfast with the BHS Director: Vision for Serving Children, Youth and Families 
• June 8, 2021- American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) discussion and development of 

recommendations for the BHS Director 
 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Planned Focus Areas: 
• July 12, 2021- Annual CYF Council Orientation 

49

https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/CYFBHSOCCouncil.html
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/CYFBHSOCCouncil.html


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 
• August 9, 2021- Strategic Planning meeting  
• September 13, 2021- School Focus 
• October 11, 2021- Combined Councils meeting hosted by the CYF Council 
• November 8, 2021- To Be Determined (TBD) 
• December 2021- Dark 
• January 10, 2022- Bi-annual CYF Council Sub-Committees and other groups reports 
• February 14, 2022- Bi-annual CYF Council Sub-Committees and other groups reports 
• March 14, 2022- TBD 
• April 11, 2022- Combined Councils meeting hosted by the Adult and Older Adult (AOA) Council 
• May 9, 2022- Coffee with the BHS Director 
• June 13, 2022- TBD 

 
CYF Update on Advancing the Behavioral Health Continuum of Care Through Regional 
Collaboration and Innovation 
 
• Rady Children’s Hospital Hub Program Status: The County continues to meet with Rady’s 

leadership to identify service and capacity needs with emphasis on data and analytics mapping, as 
well as progress towards key milestones in development of the facility.   
 

• Threat Assessments Evaluations- Program Status: A Threat Assessment Specialty Criteria was 
implemented on July 1, 2020, which created the infrastructure for Treatment and Evaluation 
Resources Management (TERM) clinicians to provide these specialty assessments. The 
compensation rate has been under review and as of January 1, 2021, the rate was set at $2,500 
versus the base rate of $1,800 for standards assessments. A market analysis informed the rate 
setting and will continue to be evaluated. To date only one practitioner has been onboarded to this 
specialty panel. There is one practitioner on the panel, and no recent evaluation requests.  

 
Mobile Crisis Resource Teams (MCRT)  
MCRTs have been established with countywide services being rolled out in phases. A CYF System of 
Care Presentation was delivered on August 2, 2021 to Telecare and Exodus to ensure that the MCRT 
teams have the information needed to access appropriate care for children and youth. More information 
on the MCRT program can be found on the following webpage: 
www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/BHS_MCRT.html. General, non-urgent 
questions can be emailed to MCRT@sdcounty.ca.gov.  
 
School Health Initiative 
Under Board of Supervisors (BOS) Chair Nathan Fletcher’s School Health Initiative, BHS, San Diego 
County Office of Education (SDCOE), and San Diego Unified School District have partnered to explore 
the various needs of students as well as discuss SchooLink enhancements and universal screening. 

 
Creating Opportunities in Prevention and Eliminating Suicide (COPES). 
BHS has been selected to receive grant funding from the Mental Health Student Services Act Grant 
through the Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC); projected 
for October 2021. CYF and SDCOE have been working on establishing the specific elements for 
services focused on suicide prevention through Creating Opportunities in Prevention and Eliminating 
Suicide (COPES) and have been collaborating with the schools to initiate the services. 

 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) Network of Care Learning Collaborative 
CYF leadership participated with other system partners in a Learning Collaborative where a system 
vision was created with a mapping of strategies and action steps to help lead towards an ideal Network 
of Care. Planning is underway for phase 2 of the Learning Collaborative. 

 
 

50

http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/BHS_MCRT.html
mailto:MCRT@sdcounty.ca.gov


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 

 
CYF Systemwide Annual Report, Fiscal Year 2019-20 
Through a long-standing partnership with Child and Adolescent Services Research Center (CASRC), 
BHS released the Fiscal Year 2019-20 CYF Systemwide Annual Report. This valuable report continues 
to offer system trend and analysis. This edition includes a new component on youth population health 
data by capturing information from the California Healthy Kids Survey and the Youth Risk Behavior 
Survey. Initial impacts of COVID-19 are reflected in the report, and a number of other new elements 
were incorporated, including a rich appendix that pulls in other system fact sheets for easy access. The 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 report is available at: 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/TRL/TRL%20Section%206/CY
FBHS%20Annual%20Report_FY2019-20_with%20appendices.pdf. 
 
Prior year reports can be accessed at: 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/technical_resource_library.html#5 

 
Continuum of Care Reform and Pathways to Well Being 
The Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) initiative is a comprehensive framework of legislation and 
regulations designed to improve the continuum of services that support children, youth, and families 
across child placement settings. The CCR continues to guide Pathways to Well-Being (PWB) and allows 
for close collaboration across BHS, Child Welfare Services (CWS), Probation department, SDCOE and 
the San Diego Regional Center (SDRC).  
 
The following updates highlight recent work on PWB and CCR. 

 
• PWB launched a series of seven micro-learnings focused on PWB documentation for BHS 

providers, as well as system partners including CWS, Juvenile Probation, SDCOE, and SDRC. 
Trainings are accessible through Responsive Integrated Health Solutions (RIHS):  

 https://theacademy.sdsu.edu/programs/rihs/pathways/pathways-online-learning/ 
 

 Course topics include: 
o PWB Portion of the BHA Documentation  
o Eligibility for PWB and Enhanced Services Form Documentation 
o Entering PWB Eligibility in Cerner Community Behavioral Health Client Categories 

Maintenance Documentation 
o PWB CFT Meeting Referral Form Documentation 
o PWB Progress Report to CWS Form Documentation 
o Intensive Care Coordination Note Documentation 
o CFT Meeting Note Form Documentation 

 
• Child and Family Team (CFT) Meetings: The Fred Finch Child and Family Team (CFT) Meeting 

Facilitation Program facilitated a total of 4213 meetings between July 1, 2020, through June 30, 
2021. CFT meeting data continued to reflect that BHS providers have made a successful transition 
from in-person CFT meetings to alternate modalities including video and telephone conference. As 
in-person meetings resumed in 2021, the program continued to offer the option of in-person, virtual 
or telephonic access to allow for a broader range of access for all participants, regardless of 
proximity or connectivity.  
 
According to the California Integrated Core Practice Model for Children, Youth and Families (2018), 
an integral component of the CFT process is facilitating connection and collaboration with 
educational supports. Educational supports, such as a school counselor or a teacher, can assist in 
identifying educational needs, strengths, and resources within the CFT planning process. 
Educational supports can also address potential barriers to school success and collaborate to 
arrange access to school-based services. CYF in collaboration with SDCOE, CWS, Juvenile 
Probation, and the CFT Meeting Facilitation program, developed a “Request for Education 

51

https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/TRL/TRL%20Section%206/CYFBHS%20Annual%20Report_FY2019-20_with%20appendices.pdf
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/TRL/TRL%20Section%206/CYFBHS%20Annual%20Report_FY2019-20_with%20appendices.pdf
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/technical_resource_library.html#5
https://theacademy.sdsu.edu/programs/rihs/pathways/pathways-online-learning/


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 

Representative at a CFT Meeting” letter for CFT members to utilize when requesting an Educational 
Representative at the CFT meetings. This process enhancement became effective on August 1, 
2021. More information is included in the 2021-08-04 - BHS Provider Information Notice and at: 
https://theacademy.sdsu.edu/programs/rihs/pathways/. 
 

• Beginning July 2021, BHS contracted STRTPs who have bed capacity for 12 youth or less, have 
the option to partner with the Center for Child and Youth Psychiatry (CCYP) program for psychiatric 
services. The option for STRTPs to utilize CCYP will ensure that youth who have the most intensive 
and complex mental health needs are able to access Medication Management from psychiatrists 
experienced in the System of Care, with minimal disruption or lapses in services.  
 
As of July 2021, 11 group homes have been licensed as Short-Term Residential Therapeutic 
Programs (STRTP) in San Diego County. All 11 of the licensed STRTPs have established BHS 
contracts. Ten of the STRTPs have Mental Health Program approval from DHCS to provide 
Specialty Mental Health Services (SMHS), and one is awaiting final approval. BHS has facilitated 
STRTP Mental Health Program orientations for all onboarding STRTPs and is providing weekly 
technical assistance for each newly contracted STRTP providing SMHS.  
 
California is working on shifting STRTPs to Qualified Residential Treatment Programs (QRTP) as 
Title IV-E funding may be leveraged for the Board and Supervision costs of youth residing in QRTPs. 
The definition of a QRTP in Title IV-E overlaps with the definition of an Institution for Mental Disease 
(IMD) in Title XIX.  Title XIX prohibits federal reimbursement for covered services provided to a 
beneficiary who resides in an IMD. California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) sought 
authorization from Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) to exclude STRTPs from 
consideration as IMDs, however a blanket approval was not provided and DHCS must assess each 
STRTP/QRTP by December 31, 2021, to determine IMD status. The evaluation tool that DHCS has 
presented appears to indicate that any STRTP with over 16 beds will be deemed an IMD. The State 
and the County are exploring solutions to address this issue.  
 
Under Families First Prevention Services Act (FFPSA) as of October 1, 2021, a Qualified Individual 
(QI) who is most likely a clinician, needs to evaluate any youth being considered for 
STRTPs/Qualified Residential Treatment Programs (QRTPs). System partners are exploring the 
local infrastructure to meet this new requirement. In addition, youth leaving an STRTP/QRTP must 
have access to a minimum of 6 months of aftercare. State level discussions continue to review the 
type of aftercare, inclusive of high-fidelity wraparound.  

 
Therapeutic Foster Care (TFC) Update 
In Fiscal Year 2020-21, new TFC forms were made available to providers to facilitate the delivery and 
documentation of TFC services. The TFC program served six clients and provided training and 
certification for seven TFC parents.   
 
Family Urgent Response System (FURS) 
FURS is a statewide and county-level system designed to provide collaborative and timely phone-based 
or in-home, in-person response during situations of instability between current and former youth in foster 
care and their caregivers. In compliance with Assembly Bill (AB) 79 and Senate Bill (SB) 80 a local 
partnership between BHS, CWS and Probation formed to provide a local FURS network that is prepared 
to dispatch local trauma-informed mobile support to foster youth experiencing a crisis that is identified 
through a State-run hotline. CWS provided the local response effective March 2021, with service 
provision shifting to a contracted provider effective July 1, 2021. In Fiscal Year 2020-21 there were less 
than ten referrals to San Diego County from the State Hotline. FURS information was shared with the 
CYF Council on March 8, 2021 and also added to the BHS website which also links to State information: 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_chi
ldren/Family_Urgent_Response_System.html 

52

https://theacademy.sdsu.edu/programs/rihs/pathways/
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/Family_Urgent_Response_System.html
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/mental_health_services_children/Family_Urgent_Response_System.html


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 

 
AB 2083 Foster Youth: Trauma-Informed System of Care 
The County of San Diego successfully executed a System of Care Interagency Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU), as guided by AB 2083, Trauma-Informed System of Care for Children and Youth. 
The MOU seeks to ensure that the Systems Partners' programs and policies reflect a coordinated, 
integrated, timely, and effective delivery of services for children, youth, and families. System partners 
included in the MOU are CWS, BHS, Probation Department, SDCOE, SDRC. The MOU was submitted 
to California Department of Social Services (CDSS) in March 2021. Executive leadership 
representatives from each System Partner have formed an Interagency Leadership Team, which meets 
quarterly and serves as the governing and coordinating body of the AB 2083 collaborative. In addition, 
leadership from AB 2083 partners have formed a Child and Family Wellness System of Care Committee 
which meets monthly with the goal of fully implementing the interagency MOU. 

 
The AB 2083 Training Development Workgroup is continuing to work toward the goal of creating one 
comprehensive e-Learning for BHS providers and system partners that will integrate information from 
system partners serving children, youth, and families. The workgroup, led by RIHS and BHS includes 
representatives from CWS, Juvenile Probation, SDRC, and SDCOE. This e-Learning is projected to be 
rolled out in Fiscal Year 2021-22. 
 
COVID-19 Service Delivery Impacts and Adjustments 
 
• Pandemic Impact Report 2019-20: CYF, in collaboration with the Child and Adolescent Services 

Research Center (CASRC) has been working on a Pandemic Impact Report. The report examines 
the impact of the first ten months of the pandemic, beginning with the Stay-At-Home order in March 
2020. The report compares the San Diego County Behavioral Health data from March through 
December 2020 to the same time frame in 2019. The report includes demographics and service 
system information, satisfaction, symptom severity, client outcomes, and crisis services. The report 
can be accessed on the CASRC website at:  
https://medschool.ucsd.edu/som/psychiatry/research/CASRC/resources/SOCE/Pages/Reports.as
px 
 

• Tools for Practitioners: CYF and CASRC created several tools and infographic content to support 
practitioners in delivering care. These tools include: 

o Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) Strengths during client plan development 
and treatment interventions. 

o Handout on engaging families and youth in teletherapy which highlights engagement 
strategies for various developmental levels of clients. 

o Clinician Telehealth Checklist of teletherapy best practices to support clinicians with 
standardize protocols. 

 
• Come Play Outside:  CYF, in collaboration with the City of San Diego and the City’s Department 

of Parks and Recreation launched the Come and Play Outside! initiative on June 1, 2021. In 
response to the long-standing closure of schools, parks, and recreational centers, which resulted in 
a drastic decrease of physical outdoor activities and the negative socio-emotional consequences, 
BHS responded quickly to actualize this initiative. Come Play Outside! offers a wide variety of 
programs and schedules, including, but not limited to aquatics, adventure camp, Teen Nite, Sports 
Camps, Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) and Science, Technology, 
Engineering, Arts, and Mathematics (STEAM) camps, and movies in the park through 18 City of 
San Diego recreation centers and three aquatic centers primarily in the Central, Southeast, and 
South Bay neighborhoods within the City of San Diego.  
 
 
 

53

https://medschool.ucsd.edu/som/psychiatry/research/CASRC/resources/SOCE/Pages/Reports.aspx
https://medschool.ucsd.edu/som/psychiatry/research/CASRC/resources/SOCE/Pages/Reports.aspx


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 

 
ARPA Emergency Housing Vouchers 
CYF identified 11 programs as candidates for a partnership to access Emergency Housing Vouchers 
through ARPA funding. Three distinct levels of care that serve both women and transitional age youth 
that present with housing needs were identified: 
• Six perinatal outpatient programs that offer SUD treatment as well as ongoing recovery services to 

women.   
• Four perinatal residential programs that offer SUD treatment and connect women to a perinatal 

outpatient program for ongoing care.   
• One Countywide mental health outpatient program that supports children and youth who are 

homeless.  
 

Although the 11 programs operate in different locations throughout the County, they all serve individuals 
across all county regions. CYF in partnership with the 11 programs, representing six legal entities, 
committed to identify 20 individuals/families for the emergency housing vouchers and to offer them on 
going supportive services.   
 
San Pasqual Academy (SPA) Graduation 
The SPA Day Services Program Manager provided the following highlight: 
The very difficult 2020-21 school year at SPA culminated with an amazing and inspiring graduation 
ceremony for thirteen hard-working and resilient seniors. Amongst this group of graduates, four of them 
are set to attend California State Universities to pursue continued education while other graduates plan 
to attend community colleges, trade schools, or work opportunities. Even with huge challenges set 
before this group of seniors including school instruction not being in-person, adapting to remote 
learning, restrictive quarantine guidelines for the better part of the year, limitations in visiting family and 
friends, and employment sacrifices due to COVID-19 restrictions; these young people transcended it 
all. They received their high school diplomas, worked with their support system on their transition plans, 
continued to develop Independent Living Skills (ILS), utilized their resources and services for health 
and wellness including emotional and psychological health, while managing their anxiety and stress 
through it all.  
 
Many of these stories were shared during the graduation ceremony. Eight of the thirteen graduates 
gave heartfelt speeches about their journey, insight, perseverance, and gratitude for all they have 
accomplished and acknowledged everyone who helped them reach these goals. The thoughtfulness 
and courage of these youth with taking on the tremendous challenge of public speaking should be 
applauded as their stories were shared in a personal, relatable, and inspiring manner. Additionally, the 
ability to hold a large outdoor ceremony where family, friends, care providers, caregivers, and others 
could come and celebrate the accomplishments of these youth was the much needed ‘gift’ for the many 
sacrifices made this year. 

 
Family Services Update 
 
•  MAT (Medication Assisted Treatment) Services: CYF continues to work towards establishing 

MAT services in a Perinatal Outpatient Treatment program. Additionally, to meet the needs of youth, 
and in awareness of the recent increase in opioid-related overdose incidents in San Diego County 
during the COVID-19 pandemic, CYF and AOA expanded the availability of MAT to adolescents 
effective July 2021. SOAP MAT, LLC, a licensed opioid treatment program, now offering MAT to 
youth ages 12-17 who have an opioid use disorder. Youth are screened to determine if MAT is an 
appropriate treatment option. MAT for youth may be focused on safe, monitored withdrawal, or less 
commonly, on maintenance of abstinence. In addition, youth are connected to outpatient or 
residential treatment services aligned with the level of need of the youth and their family. The current 
expansion of services to include MAT for youth will be monitored to assess the need in the 
community and potential expansion to other regions and providers.  
 

54



Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021 

• SAFE Housing: Facility upgrades, improving equity and access to equitable opportunities for the
women and children who reside at SAFE (Sober and Friendly Environment) Housing, a transitional
sober housing facility in a residential environment for parents, and their dependent children, who
have a CWS, court-ordered family reunification plan and who have completed a SUD treatment
program. SAFE Housing, which is an apartment building facility comprised of 5 units with each
apartment shared by up to 2 families, needed significant living improvements. CYF secured $75,000
in one-time facility improvement funds through CalWORKS that were utilized to install wired and
wireless internet service in the building (something that did not exist previously); replace worn and
outdated furniture such as couches, beds, and dining tables/chairs; replace old and outdated
appliances, including refrigerators and stoves; as well as purchasing microwave ovens, which
residents either provided or went without previously. In addition, families are now provided their own
toiletries, linens, towels, kitchenware, and utensils. Previously, residents were responsible for
bringing these items and were shared among multiple families. The funding was also utilized to
secure access to equitable online learning, training, and job search by supplying laptops, tablets,
and other Information Technology (IT) equipment that are standard in most households. The
improvements completed under this funding epitomize the County of San Diego and BHS’s
commitment to diversity, inclusion, and equity.

• Peer Support Specialists: Effective July 1, 2021, Drug Medi-Cal Organized Delivery System
(DMC-ODS) outpatient providers were expanded to include one FTE Peer Support Specialists. The
intent is to add one FTE Peer Support Specialists to the Teen Recovery Centers in quarter one of
Fiscal Year 2021-22. At this time, Peers may perform county billable case management services
after completion of the required training, as well as offer services during the Recovery Services
phase of treatment.  At the same time, DHCS has identified a plan to offer Peer Certification for both
DMC-ODS and Mental Health programming, connected to SB 803. Behavioral Health Information
Notice No: 21-041 dated July 22, 2021, offers more information on the Medi-Cal Peer Support
Specialist Certification Program Implementation through DHCS.
Link: https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/CSD_BL/BHIN-21-041.pdf

Emergency Screening Unit 
The Emergency Screening Unit (ESU) provides crisis stabilization services to children and youth 
experiencing an acute psychiatric crisis. The ESU team offers comprehensive screening services, crisis 
stabilization, and facilitates inpatient hospitalization when clinically necessary.  

In Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21, ESU had an overall decrease in utilization of 5% when compared to the 
prior fiscal year; crisis stabilization services decreased by 4%, and direct admissions decreased by 
6%. 

In the entire FY 2020-21, ESU screened 1,702 children and youth in total with a diversion rate of 
64.27%; a 5.49% reduction when compared to the prior fiscal year. The following table provides a 
summary of the data including the variance from FY 2019-20 to FY 2020-21. 

FY 2019-20* FY 2020-21** Variance from 
FY 2019-20 to FY 2020-21 

Crisis Services Admissions 1558 1491 -4.30%

Direct Admissions 223 211 -5.38%

Total Admissions 1781 1702 -4.44%

Diversion Rate 68% 64.27% -5.49%
*Fiscal Year 2019-20 COVID-19 March-June
**Fiscal Year 2020-21 COVID-19 July-June

The ESU is located at 4309 Third Ave, San Diego, 92103. The phone number is 619-876-4502. 

55

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/CSD_BL/BHIN-21-041.pdf


Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 
 
Juvenile Forensic Services Stabilization, Treatment, Assessment and Transition (STAT) Team  
The Juvenile Forensic Service STAT Team provides mental health services, with some community 
aftercare, to youth on probation in the detention facilities. Services include, but are not limited to, crisis 
intervention, assessment, psychiatric assessment, medication follow-up, individual and group 
therapies, and court-ordered reports. Services are intended to stabilize the youth and reduce 
exacerbation of behavioral health disorder symptoms when the youth return to the community. 

 
Healing Opportunities for Personal Empowerment (HOPE)  
The HOPE program officially launched in July 2021. HOPE is a collaboration between BHS and the 
Probation Department to provide a new intensive treatment program for in‐custody youth. The HOPE 
program supports the juvenile justice system’s transition to a positive youth development model while 
also focusing on the interrelated Triad of Treatment needs typical of youth who are in custody and 
provides evidence‐based and evidence‐informed treatments for criminogenic, mental health, and 
substance use. This innovative program allows BHS Juvenile Forensics Services STAT‐HOPE 
clinicians to work side‐by‐side with Probation staff in the units to create a therapeutic milieu that is both 
strengths‐based and trauma‐informed. Youth practice newly acquired skills in a safe environment, while 
also maintaining structure and personal accountability.  
 
The HOPE program will actively work to foster engagement with the larger San Diego community. To 
accomplish this, family members, other positive allies of the youth, and community‐based organizations 
will be an integral part of the in‐custody treatment program. As a youth progresses through their 
therapeutic program, they will be encouraged to make use of passes to leave the facility so they can 
engage in prosocial community activities involving family, education, vocational training, and 
recreational activities. This will allow the youth to have progressively increasing responsibilities, while 
slowly decreasing the supervision required. Once the youth has successfully completed their treatment 
and in‐custody time, the intent is they will continue to receive services from a contracted service provider 
as well as from the HOPE clinicians to ensure success once returning home. 
 
STAT Team  
In FY 2020-21, the STAT team received a total of 5,739 referrals for clinical services for youth. There 
were 3,008 referrals for Kearny Mesa Juvenile Hall/Urban Camp and 2,731 referrals for East Mesa. The 
referrals cover a variety of interventions, but specifically the 5,739 referrals resulted in the following 
services:  
• There was a total of 11,301 clinical visits/sessions from the STAT team licensed mental health 

clinicians, senior clinical psychologists and clinical psychologists, and a total of 2,144 services from 
the STAT team psychiatrists:   
o 5,253 mental health clinician visits and 904 psychiatric visits at Kearny Mesa Juvenile Hall  
o 2,070 mental health clinician visits and 409 psychiatric visits at Urban Camp  
o 3,968 mental health clinician visits and 831 psychiatric visits at East Mesa 
 

In addition to the clinical services provided by the STAT team directly to the youth, team members also 
provided training for probation officers and participated as subject matter experts (SME) in over 160 of 
probations weekly Interagency Placement Committee (IPC) meetings, Screening and Disposition 
meetings and Juvenile Forensic Assistance for Stabilization and Treatment (JFAST) Court.    
 
May Is Mental Health Month Poster Contest 
As in previous years, the STAT team in collaboration with the Probation Department, and SDCOE, 
acknowledged May is a Mental Health Month with a Mental Health Poster Project/Contest at the 
Juvenile Detention facilities. The project included: 
 
 

56



Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 
• Specific groups and or classroom lessons on various mental health topics, including but not limited 

to definitions, signs and symptoms of mental health concerns, and healthy copying skills.  
• Artistic expression through a poster contest with 1st, 2nd, and 3rd place prizes. This poster contest, 

assisted in normalizing mental for the youth and created a safe environment by facilitating open 
discussion and dialogue on how youth are feeling and healthy ways to express themselves.  

 
Over 100 youth participated in small group discussions and/or entered the contest. The youth worked 
on the posters during their free time and then were given the opportunity to present their poster. The 
posters were displayed in the facility for all to see. 
 
BHS continues to meet with Probation on the opening of the Department of Probations new Youth 
Transition Campus (YTC) at Kearny Mesa where there will be eight new buildings to house youth with 
12 youth per unit, providing a total capacity on the campus for 96 youth. There will be STAT clinicians 
located at the units, available to the youth and as an active part of the milieu. 
 
SB 823/AB 1868 - Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) 
In 2020, California enacted SB 823/AB 1868, which phases the closure of California’s Department of 
Juvenile Justice (DJJ) by June of 2023, with no new admissions effective July 1, 2021. Probation has 
disseminated information and engaged BHS and other critical partners on mapping out the local 
infrastructure to support youth and young adults who will be cared for locally with the closure of DJJ. 
The new local programming will be known as the Youth Development Academy (YDA) and is projected 
to commence on July 1, 2022 and will serve youth and young adults up to the age of 25.  
 
As a requirement to receive funding through the Juvenile Justice Realignment Block Grant Program, 
counties must create a subcommittee within the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council (JJCC) per WIC 
1995 and submit a Juvenile Justice Realignment Plan to the Office of Youth and Community Restoration 
(OYCR) by January 1, 2022. The plan must be submitted annually to OYCR by May 1st and the JJCC 
Subcommittee must convene to review the plan every three years. CYF is an active member of the 
subcommittee and contributor to the plan. On August 17, 2021, the Board of Supervisors was scheduled 
to review / ratified membership of the subcommittee of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council 
regarding Juvenile Justice Realignment.  

 
CYF System of Care Training Academy 
The CYF System of Care (CYF-SOC) Training Academy is a collaboration of the four sector partners 
(private, public, education, family/youth) managed through the contract with RIHS.  
 
CYF-SOC Training Academy promoted the following trainings for Fiscal Year 2020-21: 
• Suicidality in Children and Youth (delivered on August 6, 2020)  
• Bridges Out of Poverty (delivered October 6, 2020) 
• Understanding our Own Biases and Assumptions (May 12, 2021) 
• Supporting People of Color in Treatment (June 11, 2021) 
• Recognizing and Responding to Cultural Cues in Service Delivery (June 29, 2021) 
 
Planning is underway for FY 2021-22 CYF-SOC Training Academy which plans to deliver training on 
Trauma Resilient Education Communities (TREC); Supporting Families Moving through Pain, Grief, and 
Healing; Asian, Pacific Islander, Desi American (APIDA) Cultures; African American Cultures, and 
more. 

 
CYF-SOC Annual Conference 
CYF-SOC hosted the virtual conference focused on Youth Substance Use: Risk, Resilience, 
Reconnection on May 27, 2021. Conference presentations included: Understanding the Impact of In 
Utero Substance Exposure and Implementing Concrete Care Strategies with Young Children Who Have 
Been Substance Exposed; Cannabis Use in the Emergence of Psychosis; Tobacco, Marijuana, and 
Vaping; Opioid Crisis and Juvenile Drug Smuggling in San Diego County; The Impact of Trauma and 

57



Behavioral Health Services 
Director’s Report – September 2021  
 
Youth Substance Use; and “The Chicken or the Egg”: The Relationship Between Mental Health and 
Substance Use Disorders.  
 
The conference also featured an opening keynote presentation entitled “Current Trends in Substance 
Use Impacting Youth and Families” presented by Thomas Freese, Ph.D., and a closing keynote 
presentation entitled “Nurturing Wellness with Healing-Centered Practices: Restorative Justice 
Practices are Much More than Conflict Resolution” by Gabriel Nuñez-Soria, M.A. Twenty scholarships 
were awarded to peer support partners to attend the conference. 

 
California Mental Health Advocates for Children and Youth (CMHACY) 
Six scholarships were awarded to attend the 41st annual California Mental Health Advocates for Children 
and Youth (CMHACY) virtual conference held virtually on April 28-29, 2021. This year, the conference 
focused on Non-Negotiable: Demanding Social Justice & Racial Equity in Our System of Care.  

 
Children, Youth and Family Liaison (CYFL) 
The Children, Youth and Family Liaison (CYFL) https://cyfliaison.namisandiego.org/ has the primary 
duty of coordinating, training, and advancing Youth/Family Professional Partnerships for CYF within 
BHS, collaborating with CYF administrative staff to ensure family and youth voice, choice, and values 
are incorporated into service development, implementation plans, and overall CYF service delivery.  
 
• The three cloud-based applications managed by CYFL (oscER, oscER Jr., alfrEDU) continue to be 

on track to be available in the threshold languages by June of 2022. The applications can be 
accessed at:  
https://oscer.namisandiego.org/ 
https://oscerjr.namisandiego.org/ 
https://alfredu.namisandiego.org/ 
 

• The CYFL coordinated and hosted the 7th Annual Youth Mental Health Well-Being Celebration on 
Friday, May 7, 2021. Due to COVID-19, the event was held virtually for the second year in a row. 
The theme of the celebration was “Flipping the Script on Mental Health”. A highlight of the event 
was the presentation of a Proclamation by Board of Supervisors Chair Nathan Fletcher Honoring 
Children’s Mental Health Awareness Day  
 

• The CYFL continues to follow updates on the SB 803 Peer Support Specialist Certification Act of 
2020 signed into law by Governor Gavin Newson on September 25, 2020. SB 803 establishes a 
statewide certification program for peer support specialists and provides the structure needed to 
maximize the federal match for peer services under Medi-Cal. SB 803 updates is a standing agenda 
meeting item at the Youth and Family Support CYF Council Sub-Committee monthly meetings. 
State Counties’ participation is optional. The DHCS peer support specialist website can be accessed 
at:  https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/Pages/Peer-Support-Services.aspx. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
LUKE BERGMANN, Ph.D., Director 
Behavioral Health Services 
 
cc: Nick Macchione, Agency Director 
     Cecily Thornton-Stearns, Assistant Director and Chief Program Officer 
     Aurora Kiviat, Assistant Director and Chief Operations Officer  
 

58

https://cyfliaison.namisandiego.org/
https://oscer.namisandiego.org/
https://oscerjr.namisandiego.org/
https://alfredu.namisandiego.org/
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/Pages/Peer-Support-Services.aspx


59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



Pandemic 
Impact Report 
2019-20

Children, Youth, & Families 
Behavioral Health Services

Report Date: 7/7/2021

Introduction 

This report examines the impact of the first 10 months of the pandemic, beginning with 
the stay-at-home order in March 2020, by comparing San Diego County Behavioral 
Health data* from March to December of 2020 to the same time frame in 2019. This 
report includes Medi-Cal and unfunded clients. 

Topics Reviewed:
• Demographics and service system information

• Length of stay
• Levels of care 
• Telehealth

• Satisfaction
• Symptom severity as measured by the PSC and CANS
• Client outcomes as reported on the PSC and CANS
• Crisis services
• Additional outcomes

*The majority of the data comes from the county mental health organizational provider system.

2 72



Demographics

Clients Served 

Before the pandemic, there were 
12,945 clients served in County of 
San Diego Children, Youth, and 
Families Behavioral Health Services 
(CYFBHS). During the pandemic, 
there were 10,441 clients, which is a 
decrease of 19.3%.

During the pandemic, the average 
age of clients receiving services 
stayed the same.

Data Source: CCBH
4

12,945 

10,441 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 Y

OU
TH

 S
ER

VE
D

Clients Served Before and During Pandemic*
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019 DURING: March 2020 - December 2020

*These numbers represent unique clients within this timepoint that received any service (except FFS IP) 

11.07 11.16

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18

AG
E 

(Y
EA

RS
)

Age of Clients Before and During Pandemic*†‡

PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                       N=12,943

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                               N=10,437

*These numbers represent unique clients within this timepoint that received any service (except FFS IP) within 
each time period.
†Age is calculated based on the FY for that timepoint (1/1/19 or 1/1/20).
‡Missing or inaccurate data was excluded.

73



Clients Served: Gender 

Gender disparities in access decreased a small amount during the pandemic. The proportion of 
females served by CYFBHS has increased since FY 2015-16 (44%) to 46.6% in the months before 
the pandemic and 48.5% during the pandemic

5
Data Source: CCBH

46.6%

53.2%

0.2% 0.0%

48.5%
51.3%

0.2% 0.0%6,032 6,8855,060 5,352
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Female Male Other Unknown

PE
RC

EN
TA

GE
 O

F 
CL

IE
NT

S

Gender of Clients Before and During Pandemic*
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                       N=12,945

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                               N=10,441

*These numbers represent unique clients within this timepoint that received any service (except FFS IP) within each time period.

During the pandemic, the percent of female clients 
increased while the percent of male clients decreased.

Clients Served: Race and Ethnicity 

There did not appear to be any racial/ethnic differences in accessing services during the 
pandemic.

6
Data Source: CCBH

19.7%

62.7%

9.6%

3.1%
0.5% 2.3% 2.0%

20.4%

62.7%

9.5%

3.0%
0.5% 2.3% 1.7%2,555 8,111 1,2472,129 6,457 990

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

White Hispanic Black/African-
American

Asian/Pacific
Islander

Native American Other Unknown/Not
Reported

PE
RC

EN
TA

GE
 O

F 
 C

LI
EN

TS

Race/Ethnicity of Clients Before and During Pandemic*†‡

PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                       N=12,945

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                               N=10,441

During the pandemic, proportions of clients served 
within each racial/ethnic category stayed the same. 

*These numbers represent unique clients within this timepoint that received any service (except FFS IP) within each time period.
†Race is the most recent for each timepoint (cutoff of 12/31/19 or 12/31/20).
‡Missing or inaccurate data was excluded.

74



Clients Served: Primary Diagnosis

During the pandemic, the proportion of clients diagnosed with an oppositional/conduct 
disorder or adjustment disorder decreased, while the proportion of clients diagnosed with a 
stressor disorder increased. This may be a result of traumatic stress stemming from the 
pandemic, or it might be a part of a larger trend of stressor disorders increasing steadily in the 
last 3 years. 

7
Data Source: CCBH

10.6%
8.5%

31.9%

2.8%

14.3%
17.0%

10.4%

0.8%

10.4%
7.0%

31.9%

2.9%

14.2% 15.1%
13.2%

1.0%1,223 984 3,675 1,655 1,965 1,205978 655 2,990 1,337 1,416 1,238
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%

ADHD Oppositional /
Conduct Disorders

Depressive
Disorders

Bipolar Disorders Anxiety Disorders Adjustment
Disorders

PTSD / Acute
Stress Reaction

Schizophrenia and
Other Psychotic

Disorders

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 C

CB
H 

CL
IE

NT
S

Primary Diagnosis*†‡ Before and During Pandemic
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                       N=11,132

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                               N=8,977

*These numbers represent unique clients within this timepoint that received any service (except FFS IP) within each time period.
†Diagnosis is the most recent for each timepoint (cutoff of 12/31/19 or 12/31/20).
‡Invalid, Excluded, and Missing Diagnoses are not represented.

Clients Served by Geographic Region

There are 41 sub-regional areas (SRAs) in San Diego. SRAs are aggregations of census blocks that 
approximate HHSA regions (which are based on zip codes). Data were available for 39 out of the 
41 neighborhoods (no clients were served in the Miramar or Camp Pendleton regions). The Anza-
Borrego Springs, Palomar-Julian, Central San Diego, Oceanside and Coastal San Diego areas 
appear to have lost the greatest percentage of clients during the pandemic. On average, 
neighborhood clinics served 19% fewer clients during the pandemic. 

8
Data Source: CCBH

Neighborhoods
PRE: March - 

December 
2019

DURING: 
March - 

December 
2020

Percent Change
Clients 
Served 
Change

Southeast SD 1118 866 -22.5% -252
Mid-City 957 712 -25.6% -245
Central SD 648 425 -34.4% -223
Oceanside 697 486 -30.3% -211
South Bay 965 754 -21.9% -211
Chula Vista 893 756 -15.3% -137
Vista 696 568 -18.4% -128
Kearny Mesa 1143 1021 -10.7% -122
Harbison Crest 379 275 -27.4% -104
El Cajon 431 327 -24.1% -104
Escondido 990 887 -10.4% -103
Ramona 275 195 -29.1% -80
Spring Valley 389 309 -20.6% -80
Fallbrook 279 213 -23.7% -66
National City 329 277 -15.8% -52
Lemon Grove 152 118 -22.4% -34
Santee 179 146 -18.4% -33
San Marcos 333 300 -9.9% -33
Lakeside 198 166 -16.2% -32
Del Mar-Mira Mesa 216 185 -14.4% -31

Neighborhoods
PRE: March - 

December 
2019

DURING: 
March - 

December 
2020

Percent Change
Clients 
Served 
Change

Carlsbad 136 109 -19.9% -27
Coastal 80 56 -30.0% -24
Anza-Borrego Springs 45 25 -44.4% -20
North SD 142 122 -14.1% -20
Elliott-Navajo 160 140 -12.5% -20
Mountain Empire 69 52 -24.6% -17
Jamul 59 47 -20.3% -12
University 41 30 -26.8% -11
Palomar-Julian 24 14 -41.7% -10
Alpine 48 41 -14.6% -7
Peninsula 49 46 -6.1% -3
Pauma 16 14 -12.5% -2
Valley Center 46 44 -4.3% -2
Laguna-Pine Valley 8 8 0.0% 0
San Dieguito 65 67 3.1% 2
La Mesa 209 212 1.4% 3
Coronado 13 16 23.1% 3
Sweetwater 216 222 2.8% 6
Poway 113 124 9.7% 11

75



Outpatient Services: Service Hours and Counts

Average outpatient service hours increased 13% during the pandemic, while the average number of 
outpatient service counts increased 25%.  

9
Data Source: CCBH

15.52 hours

17.50 hours

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

AV
ER

AG
E 

HO
UR

S

Average HHours of Outpatient Service for 
Unique Clients*: Before and During the 

Pandemic 
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                      (N=12,235)

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                           (N=9,949)

*This data represents unique outpatient clients within each timeperiod.

18.99 services

23.81 services

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20
22
24
26

AV
ER

AG
E 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

Average OOutpatient Service Count for 
Unique Clients*: Before and During The 

Pandemic
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                   (N=12,235)

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                           (N=9,949)

*This data represents unique outpatient clients within each timeperiod.

Levels of Care

During the pandemic, fewer clients were served across all levels of care. However, 
emergency/crisis services saw the largest reduction in clients served. This may be due to fear of 
going to a medical setting during a pandemic as well as national and local advisories to stay at 
home. It is unlikely to be caused by a true reduction of need, since clients entered outpatient 
services with significantly more severe mental health symptoms during the pandemic. 

10
Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of June 10, 2021

12531

325 563
1430

10689

300 502
1059

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Outpatient  
(-15% 

Residential 
(-8% 

Inpatient Services 
(-11% 

Emergency/Crisis Services 
(-

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

Clients by Level of Care: Before and During Pandemic*
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019

N=13,316†
DURING: March 2020 - December 2020

N=11,270†

*Clients may have received services from more than one level of care.
†Data is unduplicated within each of the LOC, but not across them. As such, the Ns for each LOC will not add up to the total LOC per year. 

76



Levels of Care: Racial/Ethnic Differences

There were no differences in the racial/ethnic breakdown of clients served before and during 
the pandemic in Outpatient or Emergency/Crisis services settings. 

11
Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of June 23, 2021

26.2% 26.5%

1.8%

42.8%

1.5% 0.6% 0.6%

28.3% 25.7%

2.3%

39.7%

2.0% 1.7% 0.3%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

White Black/African
American

Asian/Pacific Islander Hispanic Native American Other Unknown

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS
Residential Services Clients by Race/Ethnicity: Before and During Pandemic*

Residential Services PRE: March - December 2019 (N=325) Residential Services DURING: March - December 2020 (N=300)

During the pandemic, there were slightly more 
White clients and fewer Hispanic clients served in 

residential settings.

*Clients may have received services from more than one level of care.

26.8%

9.1% 5.2%

51.3%

1.2% 2.8% 3.6%

27.7%

8.4%
3.0%

54.8%

1.2% 1.8% 3.2%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

White Black/African
American

Asian/Pacific Islander Hispanic Native American Other Unknown

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

Inpatient Services Clients by Race/Ethnicity: Before and During Pandemic*
Inpatient Services PRE: March - December 2019 (N=563) Inpatient Services DURING: March - December 2020 (N=502)

During the pandemic, there were slightly more 
White and Hispanic clients and fewer 

Asian/Pacific Islander clients served in inpatient 
settings.

*Clients may have received services from more than one level of care.

All Telehealth Contacts

As expected, the proportion of outpatient phone and video services increased dramatically 
during the pandemic.

12
Data Source: CCBH

89.5%

10.3%

0.2%

16%

35%

49%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Face-to-Face Telephone Video (Telehealth†)

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

All Services: Before and During the Pandemic*
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                    N=141,536

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                         N=151,871

*Services refer to outpatient billable contacts (e.g., therapy, case management, medication check, etc.) where the client and family or the client and family/legal guardian 
were contacted.
†Telehealth can include both video and telephone services. 

† Telehealth service data may include some phone 
contacts in addition to video contacts.

77



Satisfaction: Youth 
Services Survey 
(YSS)

YSS - Satisfaction

The Youth Services Survey (YSS)—Satisfaction By Domain
The Youth Services Survey (YSS) is a biennial state-mandated survey administered to all mental 
health clients ages 13 and older, as well as the parents/caregivers of all youth receiving mental 
health services regardless of age. The YSS was administered to clients during three 1-week 
periods within our study timeframe: November 2019 (pre-pandemic), June 2020 (during 
pandemic), and December 2020 (during pandemic). The June and December 2020 YSS surveys 
were administered entirely online due to the COVID-19 pandemic; satisfaction results may not be 
directly comparable to previous years.

YSS Satisfaction questions were grouped into seven domains:  
1. General Satisfaction
2. Perception of Access
3. Perception of Cultural Sensitivity
4. Perception of Participation in Treatment Planning
5. Perception of Outcomes of Services
6. Perception of Functioning
7. Perception of Social Connectedness

14 78



Youth Satisfaction

During the pandemic, satisfaction briefly rose in June 2020, followed by a decrease in 
December 2020 across all racial/ethnic groups, especially in the Functioning and 
Outcomes domains. Youth satisfaction rarely changes from year-to-year, so any large 
changes like these are meaningful.

15
Data Source: San Diego Youth Services Survey

82
.1

%

79
.7

% 89
.6

%

82
.0

%

68
.0

%

72
.1

% 81
.7

%

83
.1

%

79
.0

%

90
.2

%

80
.1

%

66
.0

%

69
.9

%

82
.1

%

85
.3

%

81
.9

% 91
.3

%

82
.3

%

65
.6

% 71
.6

%

83
.0

%

86
.1

%

81
.5

% 91
.9

%

86
.9

%

71
.2

% 77
.2

% 83
.6

%

80
.4

%

77
.2

%

89
.0

%

83
.2

%

53
.3

% 63
.7

%

80
.9

%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

General
Satisfaction

Access Cultural
Sensitivity

Participation
in Treatment

Planning

Outcomes
of Services

Functioning Social
Connectedness

PE
RC

EN
T 

ST
AT

IN
G 

AG
RE

E 
OR

 ST
RO

NG
LY

 A
GR

EE

Youth Satisfaction Before and During Pandemic
May 2017 (N=1,187) May 2018 (N=1,181) May 2019 (N=1,114) June 2020 (N=471) Dec 2020 (N=495)

* *
*

*

*
*

*

*Bars to the left of this line indicate time periods pre-COVID. Bars to right of this line indicate time periods during the pandemic.

Caregiver Satisfaction

Similar to youth report, during the pandemic caregiver satisfaction briefly rose in 
June 2020 then decreased in December 2020, especially in the Outcomes and 
Functioning domains. Given that caregiver satisfaction rarely changes from year-to-
year, this change is notable.

16
Data Source: San Diego Youth Services Survey

90
.8

%

90
.4

% 97
.0

%

93
.5

%

67
.0

%

71
.5

%

90
.3

%

90
.3

%

89
.6

% 97
.4

%

91
.6

%

67
.5

%

71
.0

%

89
.5

%

92
.1

%

91
.1

% 97
.8

%

94
.4

%

68
.6

%

71
.9

%

91
.7

%

93
.1

%

94
.7

%

98
.7

%

94
.3

%

72
.8

%

76
.8

%

91
.6

%

88
.8

%

87
.9

%

98
.4

%

91
.8

%

60
.4

% 67
.4

%

90
.2

%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

General
Satisfaction

Access Cultural
Sensitivity

Participation
in Treatment

Planning

Outcomes
of Services

Functioning Social
Connectedness

PE
RC

EN
T 

ST
AT

IN
G 

AG
RE

E 
OR

 ST
RO

NG
LY

 A
GR

EE

Caregiver Satisfaction Before and During Pandemic
May 2017 (N=2,161) May 2018 (N=2,155) May 2019 (N=1,996) June 2020 (N=871) Dec 2020 (N=967)

*Bars to the left of this line indicate time periods pre-COVID. Bars to right of this line indicate time periods during the pandemic.

*
*

**
** *

79



Satisfaction by Race/Ethnicity

During the pandemic, there were 
no racial/ethnic differences on 
the General Satisfaction, Cultural 
Sensitivity, Outcomes, 
Functioning, or Social 
Connectedness domains. 

However, Hispanic and 
Multiracial clients reported 
decreased Access while White 
and Asian/Pacific Islander clients 
endorsed more. Further, White, 
Black/African-American, and 
Asian/Pacific Islander clients 
reported more Participation in 
Treatment Planning, while 
Hispanic clients reported less 
during the pandemic.

17
Data Source: San Diego Youth Services Survey

87
.8

%

81
.1

% 90
.0

%

85
.6

%

85
.2

% 10
0.

0%

86
.5

%

84
.1

%

84
.4

%

85
.2

%

83
.8

%

90
.5

%

10
0.

0%

74
.7

%

2,629 356 1,760 119 46 15 154 1,077 173 701 57 38 3 71 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

All Races/
Ethnicities

White Hispanic Black/African-
American

Asian/PI Native American Multiracial

PE
RC

EN
T 

ST
AT

IN
G 

AG
RE

E 
OR

 ST
RO

NG
LY

 A
GR

EE

Access Domain by Race/Ethnicity* 
Before and During Pandemic

PRE: May 2019 (N=3,080**) DURING: December 2020 (N=1,462**)

*Combined Parent/Youth data based on Youth race/ethnicity. Other and Unknown categories are not presented here.
**Not every youth/caregiver completed responses for every domain.

90
.0

%

87
.4

%

92
.0

%

85
.2

%

94
.2

%

10
0.

0%

85
.4

%88
.9

% 91
.5

%

88
.8

%

88
.0

%

95
.5

% 10
0.

0%

84
.7

%

2,694 383 1,796 115 49 15 152 1,199 193 775 66 42 1 83 
75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

All Races/
Ethnicities

White Hispanic Black/African-
American

Asian/PI Native American Multiracial

PE
RC

EN
T 

ST
AT

IN
G 

AG
RE

E 
OR

 ST
RO

NG
LY

 A
GR

EE

Participation in Treatment Planning Domain by 
Race/Ethnicity* Before and During Pandemic

PRE: May 2019 (N=3,080**) DURING: December 2020 (N=1,462**)

*Combined Parent/Youth data based on Youth race/ethnicity. Other and Unknown categories are not presented here.
**Not every youth/caregiver completed responses for every domain.

Client Severity at 
Intake

80



Intake Severity: PSC and CANS

• The Pediatric Symptom Checklist (PSC) is a psychosocial screening tool 

• The PSC identifies emotional and behavioral problems

• The Caregiver Form is completed by caregivers of clients ages 3 through 18 years old

• The Pediatric Symptom Checklist for youth (PSC-Y) is completed by clients ages 11 

through 18 years old

• Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) is a structured assessment to identify 

strengths and needs in youth and families

• Three domains: Child Behavioral and Emotional Needs, Risk Behaviors, and Life 

Functioning

• Needs are areas where a child or youth requires help or serious intervention

• Completed by clinicians for clients ages 6 through 21 years old

19

PSC Youth Intake Subscale Averages

During the pandemic, youth reported worsening mental health symptoms upon entering 
services. Youth PSC trends remained approximately the same across the largest racial/ethnic 
groups: Hispanic, White, Black/African American, and Asian/Pacific Islander.   

20
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

4.68 4.51 3.135.15 5.07 3.25
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

PSC-Y Attention Subscale (0-10)* PSC-Y Internalizing Subscale (0-10)* PSC-Y Externalizing Subscale (0-14)

AV
ER

AG
E 

SC
OR

E

Intake: Youth PSC Before and During Pandemic
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=3,410

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=2,600

* During COVID, youth reported statistically significantly greater problems at intake. 

During the pandemic, the intake mean score on the 
PSC-Y Attention Subscale increased 10%, the
Internalizing Subscale increased 12%, and the 

Externalizing Subscale increased 4%. This indicates 
that during the pandemic, youth reported worsening 
mental health symptoms across all PSC-Y subscales.  

81



PSC Parent Intake Subscale Averages

During the pandemic, caregivers reported more attention and internalizing problems, but fewer 
externalizing issues. During the pandemic, caregiver PSC trends remained approximately the 
same across the largest racial/ethnic groups: Hispanic, White, Black/African American, and 
Asian/Pacific Islander. 

21
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

4.39 4.19 4.954.71 4.59 4.72
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

PSC-P Attention Subscale (0-10)* PSC-P Internalizing Subscale (0-10)* PSC-P Externalizing Subscale (0-14)

AV
ER

AG
E 

SC
OR

E

Intake: Parent PSC Before and During Pandemic
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=5,485

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=3,945

* During COVID, parents reported statistically significantly more problems at intake. 

During the pandemic, the intake mean score on PSC-P Attention 
Subscale increased 7%, the Internalizing Subscale increased 10%, 
while the mean score on the Externalizing Subscale decreased 5%. 

CANS Intake: Behavioral/Emotional Domain

During the pandemic, clinicians reported that youth entered services with significantly greater 
depression, anxiety, and substance use, but less oppositional behavior, which is consistent with 
caregiver report from the PSC. A large study of general population youth reported fewer 
symptoms of depression during the pandemic than in 2018 (Twenge & Joiner, 2020). However, 
this study may not generalize to the high-risk clients in San Diego County BHS.

22
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

0.15

0.99

1.43
1.35

0.75

0.37

1.13
1.07

0.3

0.16

0.96

1.47
1.42

0.69

0.35

1.13 1.13

0.29

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

Psychosis
(Thought
Disorder)

Impulsivity/
Hyperactivity

Depression* Anxiety* Oppositional* Conduct Anger Control Substance Use* Adjustment to
Trauma

AV
ER

AG
E

SC
OR

ES

Intake CANS Before and During Pandemic: BBehavioral/Emotional Domain 
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=5,389

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=3,873

*At intake, there were statistically significant differences.

82



CANS Intake: Caregiver Resources and Needs

During the pandemic, clinicians reported caregivers had significantly greater issues with 
supervision, likely due to school closures, and safety, which is consistent with increases in 
domestic violence during the pandemic reported by a meta-analytic summary of 18 studies 
(Piquero et al., 2021). Clinicians surprisingly noted fewer issues with social resources, meaning 
that they thought caregivers had greater social/family networks to help with caregiving during the 
pandemic.

23
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

0.41 0.39

0.82

0.62

0.29
0.23

0.5

0.2

0.05

0.21

0.44
0.41

0.83

0.58

0.27
0.22

0.51

0.19

0.05

0.23

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

Supervision* Involvement
with Care

Knowledge Social
Resources*

Residential
Stability

Medical/
Physical

Mental Health Substance Use Developmental Safety*

AV
ER

AG
E

SC
OR

ES

Intake CANS Before and During Pandemic: CCaregiver Resources and Needs
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=5,218

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=3,765

*At intake, there were statistically significant differences.

CANS Intake: Strengths

Compared to before the pandemic, clinicians reported that clients entered services with fewer 
strengths during the pandemic, perhaps due to the lack of opportunity to see friends / family or 
engage in recreational activities, such as sports or church activities. 

24
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

54.4%

38.0% 38.0%

46.5%

22.0%
23.7%

20.6%

34.1%
37.8%

51.6%

34.1%
30.7%

47.1%

17.8% 18.8%
15.1%

31.7%

38.7%

5274 3538 3685 4510 2131 2297 1999 3310 36633827 2525 2274 3495 1319 1395 1117 2348 2871
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Family
Strengths

Interpersonal Educational
Setting

Talents/
Interests

Spiritual/
Religious

Cultural
Identity

Community
Life

Natural
Supports

Resiliency

Intake CANS Before and During the Pandemic: SStrengths
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=9,700

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=7,414

83



CANS Intake: Functioning

During the pandemic, clinicians rated youth as having significantly greater problems with sleep. 
In the general population, children are sleeping more during the pandemic, likely due to online 
school eliminating the need for a commute (Twenge et al., 2020). This is not the case in San 
Diego’s public system of care. Clinicians reported that youth have had fewer problems with 
decision-making and school behavior, which is logical as they have been at home.

25
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

1.26

0.65

1.17

0.34

1.01
0.92

1.07

0.53

0.3

0.14

0.88

1.28

0.64

1.14

0.33

0.96

0.73

1.05

0.56

0.32

0.14

1.06

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

Family
Functioning

Living
Situation

Social
Functioning

Developmental/
Intellectual

Decision-
Making*

School
Behavior*

School
Achievement

School
Attendance

Medical/
Physical

Sexual
Development

Sleep*

AV
ER

AG
E

SC
OR

ES

Intake CANS Before and During Pandemic: FFunctioning Domain
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=5,389

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=3,873

*At intake, there were statistically significant differences.

CANS Intake: Cultural Factors

Clinicians reported youth had significantly greater cultural stress (e.g., youths’ cultural identity 
was met with more hostility) and difficulty accessing cultural traditions, rituals, and practices 
(e.g., youth or family had more trouble practicing their chosen traditions) during the pandemic. 
This may be due to broader societal stress surrounding racial justice issues in 2020. 

26
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

0.17

0.1

0.31

0.18

0.13

0.34

0

0.05

0.1

0.15

0.2

0.25

0.3

0.35

0.4

0.45

0.5

Language Traditions and Rituals* Cultural Stress*

AV
ER

AG
E

SC
OR

ES

Intake CANS Before and During Pandemic: CCultural Factors
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=5,389

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=3,873

*At intake, there were statistically significant differences.

84



CANS Intake: Risk Behaviors

During the pandemic, clinicians reported youth had significantly greater suicide risk and non-
suicidal self-injurious behavior, but less delinquent behavior and intentional misbehavior. This 
is in line with caregivers’ report of more internalizing and less externalizing problems on the PSC 
during the pandemic. Further, a large meta-analysis of 54 studies suggests that suicidal ideation, 
suicide attempts, and self-harm have increased during the pandemic (Dube et al., 2021).

27
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

0.51

0.43

0.32
0.36

0.04

0.19 0.18

0.32

0.6

0.48

0.32 0.34

0.04

0.15
0.19

0.29

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

Suicide
Risk*

Non-Suicidal
Self-Injurious

Behavior*

Other Self-Harm
(Recklessness)

Danger to
Others

Sexual
Aggression

Delinquent
Behavior*

Runaway Intentional
Misbehavior*

AV
ER

AG
E

SC
OR

ES

Intake CANS Before and During Pandemic: RRisk Behaviors
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=5,389

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=3,873

*At intake, there were statistically significant differences.

CANS Intake: Sexual Exploitation

While clinicians reported that fewer children experienced sexual exploitation during the 
pandemic, those that did experienced significantly more severe exploitation (e.g., more chronic 
exploitation). 

28
Data Source: CYF mHOMS

0.49

0.86

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

Sexual Exploitation*

AV
ER

AG
E

SC
OR

ES

Intake CANS Before and During Pandemic: SSexual Exploitation
PRE: April - December 2019
                   N=165

DURING: April - December 2020
                      N=111

*In the intake CANS Sexuality Module, only the sexual exploitation item showed a statistically significant difference from pre- to during COVID. 

85



Client Progress at 
Discharge

Discharge Outcomes: PSC/PSC-Y

Improvement is evaluated three ways: 

1. Amount of Improvement: Cohen’s d effect size
• Increase in impairment: 1+ point increase
• No improvement: 0-1 point reduction
• Small improvement: 2-4 point reduction
• Medium improvement: 5-8 point reduction
• Large improvement: 9+ point reduction

2. Reliable Improvement: Defined by measures’ developers
• 6-point reduction on the total scale score 
• Statistically reliable 

3. Clinically Significant Improvement: Defined by measures’ developers
• Started above the clinical cutoff on one scale at intake and was below the cutoff at 

discharge
AND
• 6-point reduction on the total scale score. 

30 86



PSC-Youth: Progress at Discharge

Traditionally, the majority of youth experience improvement on the PSC at discharge. During the 
pandemic youth entered services with greater severity at intake, though they reported similar or 
better progress at discharge.

31
Data Source: CYF-mHOMS

21%

9% 12%
17%

41%

53%

64%

21%

7% 9%

17%

46%

58%

66%

218 99 122 174 434 558
403 / 
633207 70 85 161 451 568

395 /
597

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Increase in
Impairment

No Improvement Small Improvement Medium
Improvement

Large Improvement Reliable
Improvement

Clinically significant 
improvement‡

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

Discharge: Youth PSC* Before and During Pandemic
PRE: CCBH Discharge between July and December 2019

N=1,047†
DURING: CCBH Discharge between July and December 2020

N=974†

* Administered to youth ages 11 - 18 only
† Percent of clients and total N are based on clients who had both intake and discharge data available.
‡ This data is only calculated for clients who started above the clinical cutoff point at intake.

During the pandemic, more discharged youth reported 
large improvement, reliable improvement, and clinically 

significant improvement at the end of treatment. 

PSC Parent: Progress at Discharge

Again, the majority of caregivers report improvement in their children at discharge. During the 
pandemic, caregivers reported similar improvement in mental health treatment outcomes as 
they did before the pandemic.

32
Data Source: CYF-mHOMS

22%

8%
12%

16%

42%

54%
58%

22%

8%
11%

15%

43%

55%
62%

394 136 210 285 742 951
667 / 
1,158375 141 183 257 728 922

681 / 
1,099

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Increase in
Impairment

No Improvement Small Improvement Medium
Improvement

Large Improvement Reliable
Improvement

Clinically significant 
improvement‡

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

Discharge: Parent PSC* Before and During Pandemic
PRE: CCBH Discharge between July and December 2019

N=1,767†
DURING: CCBH Discharge between July and December 2020

N=1,684†

* Administered to caregivers of youth ages 3 - 18 only
† Percent of clients and total N are based on clients who had both intake and discharge data available.
‡ This data is only calculated for clients who started above the clinical cutoff point at intake.

During the pandemic, caregivers reported approximately the same 
amount of treatment improvement as before the pandemic. 

87



Discharge Outcomes: CANS

• Level of progress on the CANS 
between initial assessment and 
discharge was measured for 
discharged clients open for a 
minimum of 60 days.

• Progress is operationally defined as 
a reduction of at least one need 
from initial assessment to 
discharge on the CANS domains: 
Life Functioning, Risk Behaviors, 
and/or Child Behavioral and 
Emotional needs (i.e., moving from 
a ‘2’ or ‘3’ at initial assessment to a 
‘0’ or ‘1’ on the same item at the 
discharge assessment).

33

CANS Progress at Discharge

Before the pandemic, youth traditionally experienced treatment progress on CANS outcomes at 
discharge. During the pandemic, clinicians reported that the proportion of youth who 
experienced treatment progress on the Life Functioning, Risk Behaviors, and 
Behavioral/Emotional needs domains increased slightly or stayed about the same. 

34
Data Source: CYF mHOMS.

73%
77%

73%
76% 77% 75%

1,624 /
2,228

624 / 
812

1,833 / 
2,497

1,576 / 
2,076

571 / 
744

1,745 / 
2,313

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Progress on Life Functioning Progress on Risk Behavior Progress on Behavioral / Emotional Needs

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

AXIS TITLE
D

CANS*† Progress Before and During Pandemic
PRE: CCBH Discharge between July and December 2019

N=2,676‡
DURING: CCBH Discharge between July and December 2020

N=2,417‡

* For clients ages 6 - 21 at initial CANS assessment
† Percent of clients is based on those with progress who had a need on the scale at intake. 
‡ Total N is based on clients with initial (intake) and discharge scores available. 

88



Crisis Services

Emergency Screening Unit (ESU)

The Emergency Screening Unit (ESU) provides emergency assessment services for Medi-Cal and 
unfunded youth experiencing a psychiatric crisis. ESU’s multidisciplinary clinical team offers 
comprehensive screening services, crisis stabilization, and facilitates inpatient hospitalization 
when indicated. Crisis stabilization services are allowable for less than 24-hours at which point an 
individual should be stabilized and discharged home or transferred to an inpatient facility for 
additional service delivery to resolve the crisis.

Hospitalization via ESU occurs in two ways. First, following receipt of crisis stabilization services as 
outlined above. Second, via the direct admission process by which ESU reviews information 
received from the Emergency Departments throughout the county, and the ESU team will 
facilitate access to a county inpatient bed, as applicable, or recommend the youth is sent to ESU 
for stabilization services.

There are three (3) available inpatient hospitals for youth within San Diego County: (1) Rady 
Children’s Hospital’s Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Services (CAPS), which is the countywide 
Short-Doyle Medi-Cal psychiatric inpatient program for Medi-Cal and unfunded youth; (2) Aurora 
Behavioral Health Care and (3) Sharp Mesa Vista, which both provide Medi-Cal services.

36 89



Admissions to ESU 

Before the pandemic stay-at-home order began, there were 1,773 total admissions to ESU 
(includes duplicated clients). During the pandemic, there were 1,229 total admissions to ESU 
(includes duplicated clients). This is a decrease of 30.7%. 

37
Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of April 29, 2021 (Subunits 6301 & 6302).

192

217
209

145
129

150

184

215

180

152
162

115
124

94
101

124

142 142

120
105

0

50

100

150

200

250

March 
(-16% 

April 
(-47% 

May 
(-43% 

June 
(-35% 

July 
(-22% 

August 
(-17% 

September 
(-23% 

October 
(-34% 

November 
(-33% 

December 
(-31% 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

ESU Screenings Receiving Crisis Stabilization Services* 
Before and During Pandemic

PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
       N=1,773 (659 duplicated)

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
             N=1,229 (499 duplicated)

*This applies to clients ages 0 - 18 years old. 

Unique Clients Admitted to ESU

Before the pandemic stay-at-home order began, from March 2019 - December 2019, there were 
1,114 total unique clients admitted to ESU. During the pandemic, from March 2020 - December 
2020, there were 730 total unique clients admitted to ESU. This is a decrease of 34.5%. This may 
be due to fear of going to a medical setting during a pandemic as well as national stay home 
advisories.

38
Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of April 29, 2021 (Subunits 6301).

157

181
171

119

93

111

143

178

149

125
135

88
94

66
73

99
105

117

88
82

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

March 
(-14% 

April 
(-51% 

May 
(-45% 

June 
(-45% 

July 
(-22% 

August 
(-11% 

September 
(-27% 

October 
(-34% 

November 
(-41% 

December 
(-34% 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

ESU Unique Clients* Before and During Pandemic
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                  N=1,114

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                                N=730

*This applies to clients ages 0 - 18 years old. 

90



ESU: Unique Direct Admissions

Before the pandemic stay at home order began, from March 2019 - January 2020 152 unique 
clients were authorized by ESU for direct hospital admission. During the pandemic, from March 
2020 - January 2021 there were 158 direct admissions. This is an increase of 3.9%.

39
Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of April 29, 2021 (Subunits 6302).

14
13

14 14

25

27

14

16
17

20

13

18

20 20

23

18
19

13

22

11

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

March 
(-7% 

April 
(38% 

May 
(43% 

June 
(43% 

July 
(-8% 

August 
(-33% 

September 
(36% 

October 
(-19% 

November 
(29% 

December 
(-45% 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 C

LI
EN

TS

Total Direct Admissions to Inpatient via ESU* Before and During Pandemic
PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
                  N=152

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
                                N=158

*This applies to clients ages 0 - 18 years old. 

Inpatient Admissions: CAPS, Aurora, and Sharp

Before the pandemic, there were 782 total 
admissions (may include duplicated clients). 
During the pandemic, there were 695 total 
admissions. This is a decrease of 11.1%.

40
Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of April 29, 2021.

 PRE: March 2019 - 
December 2019

DURING: March 2020 - 
December 2020

Percent Change

CAPS 501 481 -5.70%

Aurora 25 31 24.00%

Sharp 256 183 -28.50%

90

79 78

67 68

82 79

92 89

58

83 80

57
53

71 74
66

80
72

59

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

March  
(-8% 

April  
(1% 

May  
(-27% 

June  
(-21% 

July  
(4% 

August  
(-10% 

September  
(-16% 

October  
(-13% 

November  
(-19% 

December  
(2% 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 A

DM
IS

SI
ON

S 
(C

AS
ES

 O
PE

NE
D)

CAPS, Aurora, & Sharp Mesa Vista Admissions 
Before and During Pandemic*

PRE: March 2019 - December 2019
N=782 admissions (239 duplicated)

DURING: March 2020 - December 2020
   N=695 admissions (209 duplicated)

*Data presented is for clients up to age 18. 

91



Unique Clients Served: CAPS, Aurora, and Sharp

Before the pandemic, there were 543 total unique 
clients who received services across all three 
inpatient hospitals serving kids. During the 
pandemic, the hospitals served a total of 486 
unique clients, which is a decrease of 10.5%. See 
Slide 55 “Appendix: Unique Clients Served” for more 
detailed data on unique clients served per hospital.  

41Data Source: Optum Assignments Table as of April 29, 2021.
Detailed data by Inpatient Hospital is located in the appendix.

87

76 74

59 58

76
72

86 83

55

73 71

53
48

67
74

62

76
70

53

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

March  
(-16% 

April  
(-7% 

May  
(-28% 

June  
(-19% 

July  
(16% 

August  
(-3% 

September  
(-14% 

October  
(-12% 

November  
(-16% 

December  
(-4% 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 A

DM
IS

SI
ON

S 
(C

AS
ES

 O
PE

NE
D)

CAPS, Aurora, & Sharp Mesa Vista Unique Clients Served
Before and During Pandemic*

PRE: March 2019 - December 2019 (N=543) DURING: March 2020 - December 2020 (N=486)

*Data presented is for clients up to age 18. 

 CAPS Aurora Sharp
PRE: March 2019 - 
December 2019 344 21 221
DURING: March 2020 - 
December 2020 326 28 161

Inpatient Hospitalization: Length of Stay

Fewer clients received inpatient services, but the amount of time they spent hospitalized 
increased.

42
Data Source: CYF Inpatient Hospital Data.

6.6 days

4.8 days

6.1 days

7.1 days

5.7 days

7.7 days

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

CAPS Aurora Sharp Mesa Vista

AV
ER

AG
E 

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 D

AY
S

Inpatient Hospitalization Length of Stay 
Before and During the Pandemic

PRE: March - December 2019 DURING: March - December 2020

92



30-Day Inpatient Readmissions

The percentage of discharged clients who 
were readmitted to inpatient services within 
30 days of their discharge date did not 
change during the pandemic. Inpatient 
readmissions (i.e., Rady’s, Sharp Mesa Vista, 
and Aurora) stayed about the same. 

43
Data Source: Optum CO-4 B report (March 1, 2021)

 Rady's Medi-Cal FFS Total 
PRE: March - December 
2019

68 (14%) 25 (8%) 93 (12%)

DURING: March - 
December 2020

58 (13%) 15 (7%) 73 (11%)

12% 11%

93 73
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

PE
RC

EN
T 

OF
 R

EA
DM

IS
SI

ON
S

30-Day Readmissions 
Before and During Pandemic

PRE: March - December 2019
         (Discharge N=781)

DURING: March - December 2020
            (Discharge N=680)

Additional 
Outcomes

93



Child Welfare Hotline Referrals

Before the pandemic, there were 22,021 hotline referrals to Child Welfare. During the pandemic 
there were 17,757 hotline referrals. This is a decrease of 19%, and is consistent with school 
closure during the pandemic, which is a large referral source to Child Welfare. A summary of 3 
articles reported that child protection referrals fell 27-39% (Viner et al., 2021). 

45Data Source: Q1 CWS Dashboards 12/16/2019 and 10/14/2020

3,399 

3,789 

4,248 

3,679 3,556 
3,350 

2,855 

3,259 
3,401 

2,756 2,755 2,731 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

August September October November December January

TO
TA

L R
EF

ER
RA

LS
 R

EC
EI

VE
D

Hotline Referrals to Child Welfare: Before and During Pandemic
PRE: August 2019 - January 2020
                       N=22,021

DURING: August 2020 - January 2021
                         N=17,757

Suicide Rates

In San Diego County, there were no differences in youth suicide rates during the pandemic. This 
is in line with a large universal study of 21 countries, which found no evidence of a significant 
increase in risk of suicide, across all age groups, during the first four months of the pandemic 
(Pirkis et al., 2021). It is unclear how the pandemic will impact suicide rates after the pandemic 
and during the transition back to in-person school.

46
Data Source: San Diego County Medical Examiner’s website

15

13

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

NU
M

BE
R 

OF
 S

UI
CI

DE
S

Youth Suicides Before and During Pandemic*
2019 2020

*Youth is defined as under age 18, where the cause of death from the medical examiner is listed as suicide. 

94



Conclusions and 
Recommendations

Conclusions

• During the pandemic, services were primarily delivered through teletherapy. 

• 20 percent fewer clients were served in CYFBHS during the pandemic, but those who 
entered treatment appeared to stay longer and receive more services.

• The largest decreases were noted in emergency/crisis services.

• Youth who entered services during the pandemic presented with more severe 
depression & anxiety symptoms and fewer conduct issues.

• Youth entered services with fewer ODD and adjustment disorder diagnoses, and more 
stressor diagnoses.

• Treatment was equally, if not more effective during the pandemic.

• While youth entered services with more severe symptoms at intake, they experienced 
similar, if not better, progress at discharge. This may provide support for similar levels of 
effectiveness between teletherapy and in-person services for youth. 

• Suicide rates didn’t change during the pandemic, though clinician reports of suicidal 
ideation and self-harm increased.

48 95



Recommendations Background

The stay-at-home orders and school 
closures during the pandemic led to the 
disruption in many areas of children’s 
lives. After spending a year with reduced 
in-person interaction and primarily virtual 
services and school, the return to school 
and gradual openings across San Diego 
county once again means families will 
have to adjust to a new normal. As the 
pandemic continues and the state of the 
world continues to change, the following 
recommendations should be taken into 
consideration. 

49

Recommendations from the Literature

What Has helped Children Adjust Positively During the Pandemic?

• Exercise – Participation in youth sports or engaging in daily exercise (Li, 2021).

• Screen time – Screen time was associated with more psychological distress, however, when 
screen time was used to connect with friends/family, youth reported less loneliness and 
improved wellbeing (Li, 2020).

• Social Connection – Youth who felt more socially connected reported less anxiety/depression 
and more life satisfaction than youth feeling socially disconnected (Magson, 2020).

• In-person Education – Parents of school aged students receiving virtual instruction reported 
that children experienced worsened mental health (24.9% vs 15.9%), compared to reports 
from parents of on-site students (Verlenden et al., 2021).  

50 96



Recommendations

Therapists
School Recommendations:

• Regularly ask about school reintegration and factors that serve as supports or barriers.

• Leverage SchooLink to promote ongoing dialogue with schools.

• Encourage caregivers to communicate regularly with teachers about children’s needs, 
and seek recommendations to improve children’s school experience, including, but not 
limited to, performance and behavior.  

• Facilitate caregivers’ interactions with teachers and help develop questions for teachers

• Regularly inquire about and help families create structure for school attendance.

• Discuss and help kids manage pandemic related anxiety: returning to school, mask 
policies, the vaccine, virus fears.

• Inquire about cyberbullying and other online activities – as children return to school, in-
person and cyberbullying may increase.

• Ask about access to substances since this may increase as children return to school 
campuses.

51

Recommendations (continued)

Therapists Pandemic Specific Recommendations Cont.

• Continue providing teletherapy via videoconferencing, when clinically appropriate.

• Ask all families about the positive and negative ways the pandemic has impacted their 
families (e.g., sleep patterns, electronic device use).

• Provide caregivers with accurate information about the effects of the pandemic on 
children’s behavioral health.

• Discuss with families of youth with acute need, what prevents them from seeking crisis 
services, strategize methods to increase access to services and improve perceptions of 
safety.

52 97



Recommendations (continued)

CYFBHS
• Continue providing education around depression, anxiety, trauma, sleep, and suicidal 

thoughts to remain prepared for children’s primary presenting problems.

• Contracting Officer Representatives (CORs) check in with programs in neighborhoods 
where access to care was most impacted to determine how to best support those 
programs. 

• Collaborate with the Board of Supervisors for opportunities to strengthen services to 
children, youth, and families as well as recognize challenges around workforce shortages.

• Enhance population health data to inform system development. 

• Update the telehealth definition in the electronic health record to delineate between 
video and telephone telehealth sessions, which will promote accurate reporting.

53

Questions

Questions?

54

Questions?

54 98



Appendix

Appendix: Notes

The data in this report was compiled in collaboration with multiple teams across HHSA and 
CASRC. The data sets used throughout this report were pulled from CYF mHOMS, CCBH, and the 
Optum Assignment Tables. Given that data utilized for this report came from multiple sources, 
there may be slight differences due to data extract dates.

56 99



Appendix: Unique Clients Served

The following data is the detailed data for unique clients served at each hospital presented on 
slide 41 entitled: Unique Clients Served: CAPS, Aurora, and Sharp. The data presented is for 
clients up to age 18. 

57

 

CAPS PRE: March 
2019 - December 

2019
N=501

CAPS DURING: March 
2020 - December 2020

N=481

Aurora PRE: 
March 2019 - 

December 2019
N=21

Aurora DURING: 
March 2020 - 

December 2020
N=28

Sharp PRE: 
March 2019 - 

December 
2019

N=221

Sharp DURING: 
March 2020 - 

December 2020
N=161

March 54 52 3 2 30 27
April 55 45 2 1 27 19
May 53 43 4 0 21 18
June 45 44 0 0 25 9
July 49 53 1 2 15 18

August 54 54 2 6 24 22

September 48 45 1 2 29 14

October 54 51 2 5 38 25

November 52 47 5 5 27 18
December 44 39 4 7 11 12

References
• Twenge, J. M., & Joiner, T. E. (2020). U.S. Census Bureau-assessed prevalence of anxiety and depressive symptoms in 2019 and during the 2020 COVID-19 

pandemic. Depression and anxiety, 37(10), 954–956. https://doi.org/10.1002/da.23077

• Piquero, A. Q., Jennings, W. G., Jemison, E., Kaukinen, C., & Knaul, F. M. Domestic Violence During COVID-19: Evidence from a Systematic Review and Meta-
Analysis. Washington, D.C.: Council on Criminal Justice, March 2021. 
https://counciloncj.org/resource/resmgr/covid_commission/Domestic_Violence_During_COV.pdf

• Twenge, J. M., Coyne, S. M., Carroll, J. S., & Wilcox, W. B. (2020). Teens in Quarantine: Mental Health, Screen Time, and Family Connection. Institute for Family 
Studies and The Wheatley Institution. https://ifstudies.org/ifs-admin/resources/final-teenquarantine2020.pdf

• Dubé, J. P., Smith, M. M., Sherry, S. B., Hewitt, P. L., & Stewart, S. H. (2021). Suicide behaviors during the COVID-19 pandemic: A meta-analysis of 54 
studies. Psychiatry research, 301, 113998. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.psychres.2021.113998

• Viner, R., Russell, S., Saulle, R., Croker, H., Stansfeld, C., Packer, J., Nicholls, D., Goddings, A.-L., Bonell, C., Hudson, L., Hope, S., Schwalbe, N., Morgan, A., & 
Minozzi, S. (2021). Impacts of school closures on physical and mental health of children and young people: a systematic review. medRxiv.
https://doi.org/10.1101/2021.02.10.21251526

• San Diego County Child Welfare. (2019). HOTLINE - Monthly Averages - FY2019/20 (through Sep 2019). San Diego County Child Welfare. 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/cs/CWS_dashboard/CWS_Dashboard_FY1920_Q1.pdf

• San Diego County Child Welfare. (2020). HOTLINE - Monthly Averages - FY2020/21 (through Sep 2020). San Diego County Child Welfare. 
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/dam/sdc/hhsa/programs/cs/CWS_dashboard/CWS%20Dashboard_September2020.pdf

• Pirkis, J., John, A., Shin, S., DelPozo-Banos, M., Arya, V., Analuisa-Aguilar, P., Appleby, L., Arensman, E., Bantjes, J., Baran, A., Bertolote, J. M., Borges, G., 
, P., Caine, E., Castelpietra, G., Chang, S.-S., Colchester, D., Crompton, D., Curkovic, M., … Spittal, M. J. (2021). Suicide trends in the early months of the 

COVID-19 pandemic: an interrupted time-series analysis of preliminary data from 21 countries. The Lancet Psychiatry. https://doi.org/10.1016/s2215-
0366(21)00091-2

• Li, S. H., Beames, J. R., Newby, J. M., Maston, K., Christensen, H., & Werner-Seidler, A. (2021). The impact of COVID-19 on the lives and mental health of 
Australian adolescents. European child & adolescent psychiatry, 1–13. Advance online publication. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00787-021-01790-x

• Magson, N. R., Freeman, J., Rapee, R. M., Richardson, C. E., Oar, E. L., & Fardouly, J. (2021). Risk and Protective Factors for Prospective Changes in Adolescent 
Mental Health during the COVID-19 Pandemic. Journal of Youth and Adolescence, 50(1), 44–57. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10964-020-01332-9

• Verlenden, J.V., Pampati, S., Rasberry, C.N., Liddon, N., Hertz, M., Kilmer, G., Viox, M. H., Lee, S., Cramer, N. K., Barrios, L. C., & Ethier, K. A. Association of 
Children’s Mode of School Instruction with Child and Parent Experiences and Well-Being During the COVID-19 Pandemic — COVID Experiences Survey, United 
States, October 8–November 13, 2020. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep 2021;70:369–376. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm7011a1external icon.

58 100



101

Please click HERE to view full document

https://f.hubspotusercontent30.net/hubfs/2613587/Guides - BTSG, SSG/2021 BTSG/2021 Back-to-School Guide.pdf?__hstc=95304899.83bf1f888ab8c380a959a6aba9422785.1622051842178.1630327070522.1630333557248.259&__hssc=95304899.1.1630333557248&__hsfp=2168541956&utm_medium=email&_hsmi=154123694&_hsenc=p2ANqtz-8-ngl-CRNHREIgQub6A04I0YNDKKMLFyocnVNAimqEy0gy9FrG_1eTzeK35CqMaqN7LK5nrxUKHWVNAu4xMczV5ENl2-KsHSWhu018-zo6rKoK-mE&utm_content=154122152&utm_source=hs_email


102



20 hr/week, $20/hr

Interviews this fall 

Primarily remote with some
in-person meetings

Details:

JOIN OUR TEAM:           

YOUTH ADVISOR

 Learn more 

& apply
bit.ly/3rYU3pG

Lived experience as a young person in San Diego
County
Strong communication and collaboration skills

Requirements:

Inform and guide the development and
implementation of the Youth Sector

Work with County leadership and
diverse youth from across the region

Youth Advisors:

Live Well San Diego
Youth Sector

122

http://www.bit.ly/3rYU3pG


LIVEWELLSD.ORG

Recovery Happens is a FREE, 
virtual community event 
celebrating those in recovery 
and the individuals who support 
them sponsored by the County 
of San Diego Health and Human 
Services Agency. 

Whether you are seeking help 
or resources for yourself or a 
friend, this virtual event will 
feature inspirational messages of 
hope from a variety of speakers, 
musical performances, and the 
opportunity to connect to an 
array of services. 

Prevention works, treatment is 
effective, and people can and 
do recover. 

LIVEWELLSD.ORGLIVEWELLSD.ORG

PERFORMERS
Lisa Sanders & Brown Sugar

SPEAKERS
Scott Silverman & 

Steve Sapp, Co-hosts

Laura Cain

Little Tommy

Christopher Nobbie

Other invited inspirational 
speakers

CLICK ON THE LINKS 
FOR MORE INFO OR 

TO REGISTER! 

RECOVERY 
HAPPENS

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 18    | 10:00 AM - 11:30 AMTH

123

https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/bhs/recovery_happens.html
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZMrdeCrrj8qGNeqFDUEv_Z1-FxepccwoVeP


Save the Date 
Children, Youth and Families (CYF) Council,

 Transition Age Youth (TAY) Council, and  

Adult and Older Adult (AOA) Council  

For more information, please contact: 

Grisel Ortega Grisel.Ortega@sdcounty.ca.gov 

Or 

Darwin Espejo at: Darwin.Espejo@sdcounty.ca.gov 

Combined Behavioral Health Services 
Councils Meeting 

Monday, October 11, 2021 | 10:00 to 11:30 A.M. 
Please pre-register HERE for this meeting

124

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZAtcOyrpj0vG9VjuIQ7nixAZ8H_yPahPiqW


 

 
 

                                    Save this Date                                            
Healthy San Diego 

CalAIM Kick Off Event 
 

Agenda 
 

Friday, October 22, 2021 
1:00 PM to 3:30 PM 

 
County Operations Center - Chambers 

5520 Overland Ave.  San Diego, CA.  92123 
 

RSVP to Salvador Tapia at STapia@chgsd.com 
 

Please indicate in person (limited capacity) or by Zoom 
Zoom Link will be sent at a later date 

 
Welcome & Introductions                       George Scolari, Healthy San Diego 
                                                               
CalAIM Presentation                     Michael Dutra, DHCS   
                                      
The Consumer Voice                Greg Knoll, Esq., Legal Aid Society 

 Exodus & PATH Success Stories 
 WPW Client “My Story” 

 
Meet the Health Plans               Health Plan Panel 
 
Questions and Answers        All 
 
Conclusion/Closing Remarks                  George Scolari, Healthy San Diego 
                                                              Jennifer Tuteur, MD, HHSA 
                                                              (Deputy Chief Medical Officer) 
 
  
 
         
 
 
 
 
 

What Will You Learn? 
 What is California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) 
 What’s the difference between CalAIM, Whole Person Wellness & Health Homes 
 What is ECM and ILOS 
 Who will provide the services 
 How will Whole Person Wellness & Health Homes clients transition to ECM 
 Who are your key contacts at each health plan 

 
 

125

mailto:STapia@chgsd.com


 

126


	(2) 5.01.18 SOC Council Principles 
	(3) CYF Framework 3-5-21R
	(4) 8.9.2021-CYF Council Summary - draft 9.08.2021R
	(5) Aug 17 2021 BL Item 01 Detained Immigrant Services RTB  2ppR
	(6) Aug 17 2021 BL item 03 SB 823 Subcommittee of the JJCC 2 pp 9.03.21
	(7) Aug 17 2021 BL item 03 Attachment A SB 823 Subcommittee Resolution FINAL - 2pp
	(8) Aug 17 2021 BL Item 05 District Attorney Dedicating Criminal Fines to Services for K12 Youth FINAL - 2pp
	(9) 081721 BL Item 08  Arts and Culture - 2ppR
	(10) Aug 17 2021 BL Item 09 Housing Preservation AD_ 2ppR
	(11) Aug 17 2021 Item 15 ENHANC ENFORCE ILLEGAL MARIJUANA DISPENS -2ppR
	(13) Aug 31 2021 BL Item 05 Housing and attach no pics - 2ppR
	(14) Aug 31 2021 BL Item 06 Advancing Housing Priorities Innovative Housing Trust Fund S-2ppR
	(15) Aug 31 2021 BL item 07  Transformative Housing Solutions -2ppR
	(16) Aug 31 2021 Item 08 BL Admin for Homeless Housing and Supp 20210831-2pp
	(17) Aug 31 2021 BL Item 19 Declaring Health Misinformation - 2ppR
	(18) SOAP MAT Flyer_FINALR
	(19) September 2021 BHS Director's ReportR
	(20) Social Anxiety Instagram Slides - 2pp-r
	(21) Pandemic Impact Report_7_27_21_2pp-r
	(22) 2021 Back to School Guide - 2pp-r
	(23) Youth Advisor Recruitment Flyer 2021R
	(24) 2021_rh_flyer_finalR
	(25) Comb Save the date flyer - Oct 11 2021R
	(26) HSD-CalAIM Kick Off Agenda October 2021R
	(27) LW Advance Flyer Ver 2 8.27.21 deR
	(1) 9.13.21 CYF Council Meeting Agenda.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA




